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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To the Members

Your Directors have pleasure in presenƟng the 18th Annual Report on the working of the Company together 
with the audited accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The financial results of the Company as prescribed in the said Accounts are summarised below :

2013-14 2012-13
(Rs. In lacs) (Rs. In lacs)

Revenue from OperaƟons (Net) 9062.96 9249.79
Other Income 171.53 128.19
Total Revenue 9234.49 9377.98
Less : Total Expenses 8088.30 7431.05
Profit before Finance Cost and DepreciaƟon 1146.19 1946.93
Less : Finance Cost 686.55 302.44
          DepreciaƟon and AmorƟzaƟon Expense 688.30 651.40
Profit before excepƟonal/extra-ordinary items (228.66) 993.09
Add : ExcepƟonal Items 465.37 –
Profit before Tax 236.71 993.09
Add : Deferred Tax – –
Profit for the year from conƟnuing operaƟon 236.71 993.09
Profit/(Loss) from disconƟnuing operaƟon (88.88) (85.78)
Profit for the year 147.83 907.30

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the total revenue of the company was Rs.9234.49 lacs as compared to Rs. 
9377.98 lacs in the previous year. The operaƟng surplus (profit before finance cost and depreciaƟon) of 
the Company was Rs. 1146.19 lacs as compared to Rs.1946.93 lacs in the previous year. The Company has 
accounted for excepƟonal income of Rs. 465.37 lacs during the current year. The Company has incurred loss 
of Rs. 88.88 lacs for its disconƟnuing operaƟon as against Rs. 85.78 lacs in the previous year. The net profit 
during the year was Rs. 147.83 lacs as compared to Rs. 907.30 lacs  in the previous year. 

DIVIDEND

Due to inadequate profit, your Directors are unable to recommend payment of any dividend on Equity 
Shares for the year under review.  

EXPORT

The Company’s export turnover was Rs. 2444.90 lacs during the year under review, as compared to 
Rs. 2194.56  lacs in the previous year.  

REHABILITATION SCHEME

As you are aware, the RehabilitaƟon Scheme of the company, under the provisions of the Sick Industrial 
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, was sancƟoned by Hon’ble Board of Industrial & Financial 
ReconstrucƟon vide its order dated June 10, 2010. The Scheme envisaged comprehensive financial 
restructuring of the company which is sƟll under implementaƟon. The Company has also filed a Modified 
Debt RehabilitaƟon Scheme (MDRS) in consultaƟon with the secured lenders of the Company for extending 
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the Ɵme for compleƟon of rehabilitaƟon and for following relief and concessions: 

1. Provision for addiƟonal capital expenditure for modernizaƟon and expansion.

2. Sale of land in closed unit at Nasik and other surplus assets.

3. UƟlizing sale proceeds of surplus assets for payment to secured lenders and ModernizaƟon/Expansion.

4. Restructuring of repayment schedule of ARCIL.

5. Conversion of ZCCD of ARCIL into equity shares. 

6. Restructuring of repayment schedule of IDBI Term Loan and CRPS.

7. Availing exempƟon from the payment of Electricity Duty and other benefits which was sancƟoned in 
the Scheme but yet to be disbursed by the appropriate authoriƟes.

Your Directors are hopeful that performance of the Company will improve in coming years once the MDRS 
is sancƟoned by BIFR. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Audited Accounts for the year under review are in conformity with the requirements of the Act and the 
AccounƟng Standards. The financial statements reflect fairly the form and substance of transacƟons carried 
out during the year under review and reasonably present your Company’s financial condiƟon and results 
of operaƟons.

Your Directors confirm that :

i) In the preparaƟon of the annual accounts, the applicable accounƟng standards had been followed and 
no material departures have been made from the same, save and except as menƟoned in  the Auditor’s 
Report.

ii) They have adopted such accounƟng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

iii) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company, 
for prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud and other irregulariƟes;

iv) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The comments made by the Auditors in their report and other relevant points in Annexure to their report 
are self-explanatory. The relevant notes to the accounts also clarify the points referred to by the Auditors. 
The Auditors have drawn aƩenƟon of the members in point no.6 of their report, point wise reply of which 
are as under :

1. Point no. 6(a) regarding non-provision of long term and short term loans and advances, which has not 
been provided because Company is hopeful of some recovery out of it and if necessary, in consultaƟon 
with the Auditors, necessary provision will be made in coming years.

2. Point no.6(b) regarding the claims receivable from octroi department in respect of closed Nasik unit, 
your Company is hopeful of either receiving the claims or will be adjusƟng the claims with the  dues of 
octroi dept., if any, payable at the Ɵme of sale of closed Nasik unit.

3. Point no. 6(c) is related party transacƟon and has not been wriƩen off.

4. Point no. 6(d) is related to confirmaƟon from the parƟes and since your Company deals with many small 
customers, geƫng confirmaƟon from all is difficult, however your Company’s debtors are regular since 
long Ɵme.
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5. Regarding Point no. 6(e), your Company is taking all the necessary steps for  raising finance and is 
hopeful of improved cash flow in coming years.

6. Regarding Point no.6(f), your Company has not made the provision of conƟngent liabiliƟes in terms of 
the provisions of AS 29 since quantum of liability can not be ascertained pending seƩlement/disposal of 
appeals and Company is hopeful of geƫng favourable orders from the appellate authoriƟes in respect 
of such appeals.

TRANSFER TO INVESTORS’ EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

In terms of secƟons 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 read with General Circular No. 22/2002 
dated 23rd September, 2002 issued by the Department of Company Affairs, the Company could not deposit 
unclaimed and unpaid redempƟon amount of debentures and accrued interest thereon to Investors’ 
EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund and had filed necessary applicaƟon with the BIFR seeking relief u/s 22(3) 
of SICA and also their approval to make the payment to public debenture holders as and when debentures 
cerƟficates are surrendered to the Company. The BIFR has approved the same in terms of the RehabilitaƟon 
Scheme sancƟoned by them vide order dated 10th June, 2010. The Company is making payment to the 
debenture holders under public category as and when the debenture cerƟficates are surrendered with the 
company.  

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

InformaƟon pursuant to SecƟon 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act,1956 read with the Companies(Disclosure 
of ParƟculars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is provided in the Annexure to the Report. 

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any public deposit since its incepƟon. 

DIRECTORS

Mr Sunil Khaitan, reƟres by rotaƟon,  and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

The nominaƟon of Mrs Devjani Mandal as Nominee Director of the company was withdrawn by IDBI Bank 
Limited w.e.f. 7th May, 2014.  The Board places on record its deep appreciaƟon of the valuable services 
rendered by Mrs. Devjani Mandal during her tenure as Director of the company. 

Mr Dipak Rudra,  IAS ( Retd.),  Mr Probir Roy and Mr Dipak Dasgupta, Independent Directors, whose period 
of office are liable to determinaƟon of reƟrement of directors by rotaƟon under the Companies Act, 1956, 
meet all the criteria of independent directors laid down under SecƟon 149 (6) and Code for Independent 
Directors in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, the Board appointed all the aforesaid directors as Independent Directors of the Company to 
hold office for five consecuƟve years for a term up to the conclusion of annual general meeƟng to be held 
in the year 2019, whose period of office shall not be liable to determinaƟon by reƟrement of directors by 
rotaƟon. Their candidature are proposed by a member of the Company for the posiƟon of Independent 
Director.

Mr Sunil Khaitan has been re-appointed as Chairman  and  Managing Director of the Company by the Board 
for a period of 3 years w.e.f  1st April, 2014  in terms of SecƟon 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013, whose period of office shall be liable to reƟrement  of directors by rotaƟon. 

Brief parƟculars of the said directors have been given in the NoƟce convening the ensuing annual general 
meeƟng and your Board recommends appointment/re-appointment as set out in the NoƟce.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Your Directors reaffirm their conƟnued commitment to good corporate governance pracƟces. During 
the year under review, your Company was in compliance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the LisƟng 
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Agreement with the Stock Exchanges relaƟng to corporate governance and as required by Clause 49 of 
the LisƟng Agreement, Management Discussion & Analysis Report and Corporate Governance Report are 
annexed to the Directors’ Report and forms part of this report.  

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

A cerƟficate from the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of the condiƟons of Corporate 
Governance as sƟpulated in the Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement is also aƩached to this report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s. S. S. Kothari & Co., ( RegistraƟon no. 302034E )  Chartered 
Accountants, reƟre in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,1956 and are eligible for re-
appointment. The Board recommends the re-appointment of M/s. S. S. Kothari & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General MeeƟng 
Ɵll the conclusion of the Twenty-First Annual General MeeƟng of the Company, subject to raƟficaƟon by 
members at every Annual General MeeƟng of the Company.

A cerƟficate from the Statutory Auditors has been received to the effect that they meet the criteria laid 
down under SecƟon 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

COST AUDITORS

The Board of Directors of your Company have on the recommendaƟon of the Audit CommiƩee, appointed 
M/s. Mitra Bose & Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors, to conduct cost audit of your Company 
for the financial year 2014-15, at a remuneraƟon as menƟoned in the noƟce convening the AGM, subject to 
raƟficaƟon by the members of your Company.

The Audit CommiƩee has received a cerƟficate from the Cost Auditors cerƟfying their independence and 
arm’s length relaƟonship with your Company. In accordance with the Companies ( Cost Audit Report ) Rules, 
2011, the due date of filing the cost audit report in XBLR for the financial year ended 31st March, 2013 was 
30th September, 2013 and the same was filed on 9th July,2013 vide SRN No. S 2150742 with the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There was no employee in receipt of remuneraƟon of Rs. 60 lacs or more in the current financial year or 
Rs. 5,00,000/- or more per month within the meaning of SecƟon 217(2A) of the Companies Act,1956.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company conƟnued to have cordial relaƟons with the employees at its plants located at UƩarpara 
and Paper Machine Wire unit at Nasik, Registered Office and Branch Offices and the Board records its 
appreciaƟon for the useful contribuƟon made by them. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciaƟon for the support and cooperaƟon extended by the 
lenders i.e. Financial InsƟtuƟons and Banks, customers, suppliers, employees, investors and Government 
AuthoriƟes during the year. 

Registered Office  : For and on behalf of the Board 
25,Ganesh Chandra Avenue,
CalcuƩa – 700 013 Sunil Khaitan  
Dated :  5th August, 2014 Chairman & Managing Director 
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ConservaƟon of Energy Technology AbsorpƟon & Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

In accordance with the Companies (Disclosure of ParƟculars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :

 a) Energy ConservaƟon measures taken 

  At UƩarpara 

  1. a) In CoaƟng  Plant , Electrolysis process was with 3 ph VARIAC (which was less efficient ) was 
replaced Inverters (AC drives which are more efficient)

   b) In CoaƟng   Plant, Wire TransportaƟon system was with 1 ph VARIAC and  DC shunt motors 
(which were less efficient ) was replaced Inverters (AC  drives which are more efficient)

  2. a)  Investments and proposals being implemented for reducƟon of consumpƟon of energy : 

    No major investment proposal is planned at the moment.

   b) Impact of measures at (a) and (b) above for reducƟon of energy consumpƟon and 
consequent impact on the cost of producƟon of goods:

    Overall reducƟon in energy consumpƟon has been achieved.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION

(UƩarpara Unit)        

1. Electricity Current Year Previous Year
  (a) Purchased
  Unit 4,051,740 4,192,760
  Total Amount 31,833,230 31,734,241
   Rate / unit Rs. 7.86 Rs7.57

 (b) Own GeneraƟon

  (i) Through Diesel Generator
   Unit 8,000 19,288
   Units per ltr. of diesel oil 2.00 2.14
   Cost / unit Rs 29.08 Rs24.24

  (ii) Through steam turbine/generator
   Unit NIL NIL
   Units per ltr. of fuel oil/gas
   Cost / unit

2. Coal
 QuanƟty (Tonnes) NIL NIL
 Total Cost
 Average Rate

3. Furnace Oil
 QuanƟty (K. Ltrs.) NIL NIL
 Total Amount
 Average Rate
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4. Others (Rice Husk)
 QuanƟty NIL NIL
 Total Cost
 Rate / Unit

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
 Research & Development (R & D)

 1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company in Paper Machine Clothing area.

  Wire Weaving :

  SyntheƟc :

  1. SSB New Design developed (wriƟng/prinƟng) and sent to market for beƩer life of fabric in 
abrasive paper machines.

  2. One old Loom replaced by high speed Loom of more than double capacity.

  3. PPS Fabric developed for insulaƟon board market.

  4. Special edge reinforcement developed (Life Line) .

  5.  New Heat Seƫng and Finishing machine will be intrduced soon in producƟon line.

 2. Benefits derived as a result of above effort :

  a) With the development of  new SSB designs, we are able to meet the market demand.

  b) With the upgradaƟon of the Looms in SyntheƟc Weaving, the producƟvity and quality of the 
Fabric produced will improve substanƟally.

  c) Special edge reinforcement developed (Life Line) for beƩer life on those Paper machines where 
edge wear is maximum.

  d) The capacity of finishing will increase with the new Heat seƫng & Finishing machine to cater 
to the growing market demand.

 3. Future Plan of AcƟon :

  To conƟnue modificaƟon of Plant and Machinery, Product development and increase producƟvity. 

 4. Expenditure on R&D       

   Rs. 3.66 Lacs            

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

1. Efforts in brief towards technology absorpƟon, adaptaƟon and innovaƟon.

 A cross funcƟonal team has been created within the factory who have been entrusted to upgrade the 
technological aspects of various products produced at  UƩarpara.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts.

 The above efforts have enabled the Company to Upgrade its technology and produce  beƩer Quality of 
products to match internaƟonal standards.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (Rs. in Lacs)

 Total foreign exchange used and earned.  

  Foreign exchange earned 2,444.90

  Foreign exchange used 3,223.83
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

Paper Machine Clothings (PMC) 

PMC Industries are solely dependent on the Paper making acƟviƟes.  Paper making industries are growing 
on a verge of 7% p.s. for the last 7 years. Our per-capita paper consumpƟon is only 7.0 Kgs as against 
world’s average of 56.0 Kgs., indicaƟng great potenƟality for growth at home.  Besides, the real growth in 
Paper making acƟvity is taking place in Asian region while the other part of the world has already come 
to a saturaƟng stage.  Therefore, being staƟoned in the developing region and with sufficient knowledge 
about paper making condiƟon of Asian sub-conƟnent, we see a great future in export potenƟality for PMC 
products.  We are also in the process of developing new PMC products to fetch more business from export 
market.

EDM Wires 

Use of EDM machines in Tool Room Industry is gaining popularity all over the world.  The situaƟon has 
become challenging to the EDM wire makers with the invenƟon of developed EDM machines and it has 
increased demand of specialty EDM wires happily, which are the major product of UƩarpara Plant.  Similar 
situaƟon prevails all the over the world and with our reputaƟon in export market with our Patented products 
especially to the developed countries, we see a bright future for this product.  A new product DYNA “XT” is 
specially being developed to fetch more business from the export market as well as home market.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

Paper Machine Clothings (PMC) 

AŌer a bad spell, the paper industry both at home and abroad has started doing well and as a result the PMC 
industries are also looking forward for brighter days.  At this stage in the home market when our Company 
is all set for a beƩer business, a great threat is foreseen from Overseas PMC suppliers of neighboring 
developing country  who have started dumping their products in Indian Paper Mills at a price lower than 
Indian suppliers, which may drasƟcally reduce the NSR of our products as well as the off-take.  Further, 
PMC suppliers from developed countries have started supplying their latest patented design to large paper 
mills in India.  This becomes biggest threat to the Company.  Unless we upgrade our Plant & Machinery 
and conƟnually develop our product it will be extremely difficult to sustain our market share and further 
enhance it that depends lot on availability of soŌer fund for your Company. Your Company is also expected 
to create new business horizon in Metal Weaving segment creaƟng new domesƟc & export market.

EDM WIRES 

Threat from imported material in Indian market is seriously felt although the specialty products of Shalimar 
are ruling the home market.  In the export front, the market in the developed countries is very large and 
if quality of the product is maintained consistently the product has a very bright future.  We have already 
obtained Industrial Patent for one of our specialty products while some varieƟes are waiƟng for approval.  
And with increase of price of NF metal, compeƟƟon has become sƟffer.  But, we are confident with constant 
improvement in process, Shalimar would be able to take up the challenge.

OUTLOOK 

The outlook of Company appears bright.  The Company anƟcipates modest growth in its operaƟons in 
coming years and have taken steps to improve further in following areas :
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 Maintain high Quality Standards consistently.

 Create wide based product range to cater to export market.

 Modernize aŌer-sales service.

 Improve efficiency at all states from procurement to disposal.

 Upgrading the Old machinery.

 Develop new design of fabric.

RISKS AND CONCERNS 

VolaƟle technological environment and tough compeƟƟon from domesƟc as well as foreign markets are 
area of concern for which Company’s focus is to make cost of producƟon more compeƟƟve and reduce 
interest cost by financial restructuring with a view to withstand during downturn.  Main area of concern 
are as under :

 Growth of Indian Paper Industry is yet to be saƟsfactory.

 Improved technology is expensive.

 Very high interest cost.

 Non availability of fund for expansion & Working Capital, delaying the ImplementaƟon of project on 
Ɵme.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

The Company has adopted internal control system commensurate with its size.  The Company has appointed 
external firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors and Company ensures its strict implementaƟon 
so that assets and business interest of Company are adequately safeguarded. However, SAP implementaƟon 
is also in progress.

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The Company’s human resources strategy revolves around development of the individual.  The Company 
undertook various Human Resources IniƟaƟve, namely –

 A Performance Management System.

 Training Programmes in the area of behavioural, management and technical skill up-gradaƟon.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

The Company is making full use of InformaƟon Technology, all the branches and the regional offices of 
the Company are connected with the units by means of internet and ERP implemented is in most of the 
departments.  The Company’s website namely www.shalimarwires.com  provide all the details about the 
Company, its management and its products.  SAP is also being implemented.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statement in this Report, parƟcularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis, describing 
the Company’s objecƟves, protecƟons, esƟmates and expectaƟons may consƟtute forward looking 
statement within the meaning of applicable laws and regulaƟons.  Actual results might differ materially 
from those either.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. Brief Statement on Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

 • The Company’s philosophy of Corporate Governance is to ensure transparency in all dealings 
and maintain highest standards of professionalism, integrity, accountability, social responsibility, 
fairness and business ethics. We consider ourselves as Trustees of our shareholders and relentlessly 
aƩempt to maximize long term shareholder value. 

 • Your Directors confirm the pracƟce of good Corporate Governance codes by the Company in true 
spirit and are pleased to present below the Report on Corporate Governance. 

2. Board of Directors

 The Board of Directors of the company is presently having five directors. The Chairman & Managing 
Director of the Company is the only ExecuƟve Director. The other directors including one nominee 
director are non-execuƟve directors. 

 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2014, four Board MeeƟngs were held on 20.05.2013, 
06.08.2013, 07.11.2013 and 10.02.2014.

 The composiƟon of Directors and the aƩendance at the Board MeeƟngs during the year and the last 
Annual General MeeƟng as also other directorships and CommiƩee Memberships are given below :

Name of
Director

Category No. of  Board 
MeeƟngs 
AƩended 
during the 
year

Whether 
last AGM 
aƩended

No. of other 
Directorship

No. of other 
CommiƩee 
membership/ 
Chairmanship

Mr.Sunil Khaitan, 
(DIN00385961)
Chairman & Mg.
Director

Promoter and
ExecuƟve

4 Yes 1 NIL

Mr. Manash
Chakraborty
(DIN05293875)

Nominee of 
ARCIL

4 No 2 1

Mr. B. Dasgupta*
(DIN01096895)

Nominee of 
IDBI

1 No NIL NIL

Mrs. Devjani
Mandal *
(DIN06674295)

Nominee of
IDBI

3 No NIL NIL

Mr. Probir Roy 
(DIN00033045)

Non-execuƟve
Independent

4 No 4 NIL

Mr. Dipak Rudra,
IAS (Retd) 
(DIN00240145)

Non-execuƟve
Independent

4 Yes 9 2

Mr. Dipak
Dasgupta 
(DIN01099414)

Non-execuƟve
Independent

4 Yes 5 NIL
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 * NominaƟon of Mr. B. Dasgupta was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 29th June, 2013 and in 
his place Mrs. Devjani Mandal was appointed as Nominee Director of IDBI Bank Ltd.  w.e.f. 29th 
June, 2013. NominaƟon of Mrs. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 7th May, 
2014.

 None of the Directors of the Company’s Board is a member of more than 10 CommiƩees or Chairman 
of more than 5 CommiƩees (commiƩees being Audit CommiƩee, NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee and Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee) across all the Companies is which he is Director 
and neither of them holds office of Director in more than 15 Public Limited Companies. 

 Code of Conduct for Directors & Senior Management

 The Board had framed a code of conduct for all Board members and senior management personnel 
of the Company focusing transparency, accountability & ethical expression in all acts and deeds. A 
cerƟficate of affirmaƟon in this regard is appended.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 Your Company’s Board has three Sub CommiƩees

 o Audit CommiƩee

 o NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

 o Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee

 A.   Audit CommiƩee

  The Audit CommiƩee of the Company, inter alia, provides assurance to the Board on the adequacy 
of the internal control systems, financial disclosures and ensures that generally accepted accounƟng 
principles are observed by the Company. They also provide guidance and liaise with the Internal 
Auditors as well as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

  The Terms of Reference of the Audit CommiƩee are in accordance with those specified in Clause 49 
of the LisƟng Agreement and SecƟon 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference of 
Audit CommiƩee includes the following :

  i) the recommendaƟon for appointment, remuneraƟon and terms of appointment of auditors of 
the company ; 

  ii) review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effecƟveness of audit 
process;

  iii) examinaƟon of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon; 

  iv)  approval or any subsequent modificaƟon of transacƟons of the company with related parƟes; 

  v) scruƟny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

  vi) valuaƟon of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

  vii) evaluaƟon of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

  viii) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related maƩers.  

 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2014, four meeƟngs of the Audit CommiƩee were held on 
20.05.2013, 06.08.2013, 07.11.2013 and 10.02.2014.
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 ComposiƟon of Audit CommiƩee

 The present composiƟon of the Audit CommiƩee comprises three members, consisƟng of two 
independent directors and one nominee director. The details of meeƟngs aƩended by the Members 
are as follows:

Sl.

No.

Name Status No.of meeƟngs aƩended

1 Mr. Dipak Rudra Chairman 4

2 Mr. Manash Chakraborty Member 4

3 Mr. B. Dasgupta * Member 1

4 Mrs. Devjani Mandal * Member 1

5 Mr. Dipak Dasgupta Member 4

 * NominaƟon of Mr. B. Dasgupta was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 29th June, 2013 and in his 
place Mrs. Devjani Mandal was appointed as Nominee Director of IDBI Bank Ltd.  w.e.f. 29th June, 
2013. NominaƟon of Mrs. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 7th May, 2014.

 The Internal Auditor and the Statutory Auditors aƩend the meeƟng as and when felt necessary. The 
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the CommiƩee. The Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee Mr. 
Dipak Rudra aƩended the last Annual General MeeƟng held on 23rd September, 2013.

 B) NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

  a) ComposiƟon of the CommiƩee

   The Board reconsƟtuted the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee on 19th May, 2014, 
comprises three members, consisƟng of two independent directors and one nominee director. 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2014, one meeƟng of the NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee was held on 10.02.2014. The detail of meeƟng aƩended by the 
Members are as follows: 

Sl. No. Name Status No.of meeƟngs aƩended

1 Mr. Dipak Rudra Chairman 1

2 Mr. Manash Chakraborty Member 1

3.  Mr. B. Dasgupta * Member NIL

4 Mrs. Devjani Mandal * Member 1

5. Mr. Dipak Dasgupta ** Member NIL

   * NominaƟon of Mr. B. Dasgupta was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 29th June, 2013 
and in his place Mrs. Devjani Mandal was appointed as Nominee Director of IDBI Bank Ltd.  
w.e.f. 29th June, 2013. NominaƟon of Mrs. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank 
Ltd. w.e.f. 7th May, 2014.

   ** Mr. Dipak Dasgupta was appointed as a member of the commiƩee w.e.f. 19th May, 2014.

  b)  Terms of Reference of the CommiƩee

   The CommiƩee shall have authority to deal with the maƩers are in accordance with the 
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provisions SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as specified under clause 49 of the 
lisƟng agreement. The terms of reference of nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee includes 
the following :

   • IdenƟfy persons who are qualified to become directors;

   • IdenƟfy persons who may be appointed as key managerial personnel and in senior 
management posiƟons;

   • Recommended to the Board for re-appointment of directors based on performance 
evaluaƟon of the reƟring director;

   • Annual evaluaƟon of every director’s performance;

   • FormulaƟng a remuneraƟon policy of the Company;

   • To propose remuneraƟon packages for the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
including senior management;

   • Recommending re-consƟtuƟon of the Board or senior management as may be required 
from Ɵme to Ɵme under the prevailing laws and for operaƟonal effecƟveness of the 
Company.

  c) RemuneraƟon  to Directors

   The details of remuneraƟon paid to all the Directors during the year ended on 31.03.2014 are 
given below :

Name Salary
(Rs.)

Perquisits  &
Allowances

(Rs.)

Siƫng fee
(Rs.)

Total
(Rs.)

Service
Contract 

if any

Mr.Sunil Khaitan
(Chairman & Mg.
Director)

22,20,000 14,88,875 - 37,08,875 Yes

Mr. Manash
Chakraborty
(Nominee Director)

- - 77,000 77,000 Nominee

Mr. B. Dasgupta *
(Nominee Director)

- - 18,000 18,000 Nominee

Mrs. Devjani Mandal * - - 39,000 39,000 Nominee

Mr. Probir Roy - - 32,000 32,000 No

Mr. Dipak Rudra - - 77,000 77,000 No

Mr. Dipak Dasgupta - - 72,000 72,000 No

  * NominaƟon of Mr. B. Dasgupta was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 29th June, 2013 and in his 
place Mrs. Devjani Mandal was appointed as Nominee Director of IDBI Bank Ltd.  w.e.f. 29th June, 
2013. NominaƟon of Mrs. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 7th May, 2014.

 C)     Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee

  a)  ComposiƟon of the CommiƩee

   The Shareholders/ Investors Grievance CommiƩee was renamed by the Board as  Stakeholders 
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RelaƟonship CommiƩee in terms of SecƟon 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 on 19th May, 
2014, comprises three members, consisƟng of two independent directors and one nominee 
director. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2014, four meeƟngs of the said CommiƩee 
were held on 20.05.2013, 06.08.2013, 07.11.2013 and 10.02.2014. The details of meeƟngs 
aƩended by the Members are as follows:

Sl. 
No.

Name Status No.of meeƟngs aƩended

1 Mr. Dipak Rudra Chairman 4

2 Mr. Manash Chakraborty Member 4

3 Mr. B. Dasgupta * Member 1

4 Mrs. Devjani Mandal * Member 1

5 Mr. Dipak Dasgupta Member 4

   *  NominaƟon of Mr. B. Dasgupta was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 29th June, 2013 and 
in his place Mrs. Devjani Mandal was appointed as Nominee Director of IDBI Bank Ltd.  w.e.f. 
29th June, 2013. NominaƟon of Mrs. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 
7th May, 2014.

  b) Terms of Reference.

   The terms of reference of Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee are as follows :

   i) Ensure redressal of Shareholders and Investors complaints relaƟng to transfer of shares, 
Non-receipt of balance sheet etc.

   ii) Redressal of Investors complaints in respect of non-receipt of interest/redempƟon 
proceeds against the non-converƟble debenture.

   iii) To oversee the performance of Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd., the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent.

   iv) To delegate the powers of approving transfer of shares/debentures to the Company’s 
Registrar under the supervision and control of the Company Secretary, subject to placing 
of the summary statement of transfer/transmission etc. of shares/debentures of the 
company at the commiƩee meeƟng.

   v) To implement and monitor the various requirement as set out in the Code of Conduct for 
provision of insider trading pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (prohibiƟon of Insider 
Trading RegulaƟons, 1992.)

  As per SEBI guidelines, the powers of processing of the share transfers, both physical and demat 
mode have been delegated to M/s. Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd. in order to expedite the 
process of share transfers, issue of duplicate cerƟficates and cerƟficates aŌer split/consolidaƟon/
renewal and rematerialisaƟon. Mr. S.K. Kejriwal, Company Secretary has been appointed as the 
compliance officer for complying with the requirement of SEBI and the lisƟng agreement.

  The Company confirms that there were no share transfers lying pending as on 31.03.2014 and all 
requests for dematerialisaƟon and re-materialisaƟon of shares as on that date were confirmed/
rejected into the NSDL/CDSL system. Details of shareholders’ complaints received and resolved 
during the period April, 2013 to March, 2014 :
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  a) Number of Shareholders’ complaints received during the year : 1

  b) Number of Shareholders’ complaints resolved during the year : 1

  c) Number of complaints not resolved to the saƟsfacƟon of shareholders : Nil

  d) Number of complaints pending : Nil

4. General Body MeeƟngs

 The last three Annual General MeeƟng were held as under : 

Financial Year Date and Time Venue No. of Special ResoluƟon

2012-2013 23.09.2013
10.00 A.M. 

Science City Mini Auditorium
Kolkata

None

2011-2012 28.09.2012
10.00 A.M.

Science City Mini Auditorium
Kolkata

1 (appointment u/s.314 of the 
Companies Act, 1956)

2010-2011 30.09.2011
10.00 A.M. 

Science City Mini Auditorium
Kolkata

1 (appointment of Mg. Director)

 In the last AGM held on 23.09.2013 no resoluƟon was passed through Postal Ballot. 

 There is no proposal for passing any resoluƟon through Postal Ballot in the ensuing AGM.

 Resume and other informaƟon regarding the Directors seeking re-appointment as required by clause 
49 of the LisƟng Agreement has been given in the NoƟce of the Annual General annexed to the Annual 
Report.

5. Disclosures

 i) Related Party transacƟons have been disclosed under Note No. 33 to the accounts for year under 
review and it is not conflict with the interest of the Company.

 ii) The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of clause 49  of the lisƟng 
agreements with the Stock Exchanges as well as regulaƟons and guidelines of SEBI, wherever 
applicable. 

 iii) No penalƟes or stricture have been imposed by SEBI, Sock Exchanges or any Statutory AuthoriƟes 
on maƩers related to Capital Markets during the last three years.

 iv) Resume and other informaƟon of the Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed (including 
those reƟring by rotaƟon) at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng are given in the NoƟce relaƟng 
thereto to the shareholders. 

6. Management Responsibility Statement

 The management confirms that the Financial Statements are in full conformity with requirements 
of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Generally Accepted AccounƟng Principles (GAAP) in India. The 
Management accepts responsibility for the integrity and objecƟvity of these financial statements as well 
as for esƟmates and judgments relaƟng to maƩers not concluded by the year- end. The management 
believes that the financial statements of operaƟon reflect fairly the form and substance of transacƟons 
and reasonably present the Company’s financial condiƟon and the results of operaƟons. The Company 
has a system of internal control, which is reviewed, evaluated and updated on an ongoing basis. The 
internal Audits have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s 
established policy and procedures have been followed.



16

SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

 The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. S.S. Kothari & Co., Chartered Accountants and 
have been discussed in the Audit CommiƩee.

7. Managing Director/CFO CerƟficaƟon

 Mr. Sunil Khaitan, Managing Director and Mr. S.J. Sengupta, CFO have cerƟfied to the Board that :

 (a) They have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the 
best of their knowledge and believe:

  (i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading;

  (ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with exisƟng accounƟng standards, applicable laws and regulaƟons.  

 (b) There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transacƟons entered into by the Company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violaƟve of the Company’s code of conduct.

 (c) They accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporƟng 
and that they have evaluated the effecƟveness of internal control systems of the company 
pertaining to financial reporƟng and they have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit CommiƩee, 
deficiencies in the design or operaƟon of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and 
the steps they have taken or propose to take to recƟfy these deficiencies.

 (d) They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit CommiƩee

  (i)    significant changes in internal control over financial reporƟng during the year;

  (ii)   significant changes in accounƟng policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements; and

  (iii)  instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, 
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the control system over 
financial reporƟng.

  The above cerƟficate was placed before the Board MeeƟng held on 19th May, 2014.    

8. Means of CommunicaƟon

 (i) Financial Results

  The quarterly unaudited financial results and the audited financial results as approved and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors of the company are published during the year under review in 
leading naƟonal newspapers viz Financial Express (all ediƟon) and a local language newspaper and 
also sent immediately to all the Stock Exchanges with which the shares of the Company are listed.  
The annual reports are posted to every shareholder of the Company.

 (ii) The Company’s results are displayed on the website www.shalimarwires.com.

 (iii) The Company has a separate e-mail Id secretarial@shalimarwires.com for investors to inƟmate 
their grievances, if any.

 (iv) Management Discussion and Analysis report forms part of the Directors’ Report.  

9. General Shareholders InformaƟon :

 a)     Annual General MeeƟng

         Date : 29th September, 2014

         Time : 10.00 A.M.

         Venue : Science City Mini Auditorium, J.B.S. Haldane Avenue, 
Kolkata-700 046.
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 b) Financial Calender (tentaƟve)  1st Quarterly results On 7th August, 2014
  for the year 2014 – 2015  2nd Quarterly results On or before 14th Nov, 2014
    3rd Quarterly results On or before 14th Feb, 2015
    4th Quarterly results On or before 15th May, 2015

 c) Book Closure Date : 22nd September, 2014 to 29th September, 2014
    (both days inclusive)

 d) Dates of the compleƟon of the : Secretarial Audits for each quarter  
    1st Quarter    -  12th  July, 2014
    2nd Quarter   -  On or before 15th October, 2014
    3rd Quarter   -  On or before 15th January, 2015
    4th Quarter   -  On or before  15th April, 2015

 e) LisƟng of Equity shares on Stock  The Company’s shares are listed on the Stock
  Exchanges  Exchanges at :

    • CalcuƩa (Stock Code 100294) 

    • Mumbai (Stock Code 532455) 

    The lisƟng fees for the period 2014-2015 have been 
paid to both the Stock Exchanges.

    Demat ISIN Number in NSDL and CDSL:

    INE 655 D 01025

 f) Market Price Data  The market price data (Monthly High/Low) of the 
company’s Equity Shares traded on The Stock 
Exchange, Mumbai during the period April, 2013 to 
March 2014 is given below. There was no trading in 
CalcuƩa stock exchange.

MONTH BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LTD.
                                        High Low

April, 13 6.29 5.96
May,  13 6.27 5.60
June,  13 5.80 5.71
July,  13 6.00 6.00
Aug,  13 6.00 6.00
Sept,  13 5.71 5.71
Oct,   13 5.98 5.77
Nov,  13 5.90 4.71
Dec,   13 4.83 4.55
Jan,    14 4.57 3.83
Feb,   14 4.02 3.12
Mar,  14 3.27 3.00

 g)   Registrar and Share Transfer Agent : Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt.Ltd.
     6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Kolkata – 700 001
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 h) Share Transfer System : The Company’s shares are in compulsory demat mode. 
The share received for transfer in physical mode are 
registered and returned within a period of 15 days 
from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear 
in all respect.  Shares under objecƟon are returned 
within two weeks. Total number of physical shares 
transferred during the  year ended 31.03.2014 was  
1092

 i) DistribuƟon of shareholding & : As per Appendix
  shareholding PaƩern.

 j) DematerialisaƟon of shares : The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in 
dematerialized form under depository system of both 
the NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and the 
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

     Company’s Electronic ConnecƟvity Registrar is 
Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd., 6, Mangoe Lane, 
Kolkata – 700 001.

     31112795 Nos. of equity shares (82.73%) of the paid 
up share capital of the Company was held in demat 
form with NSDL and CDSL as on 31st March, 2014. 
InternaƟonal SecuriƟes & IdenƟficaƟon Number is INE 
655 D 01025.

 k) Corporate IdenƟty Number : The Corporate IdenƟty Number (CIN) of the Company 
is L74140WB1996PLC081521

 l) Factory locaƟon : The Company’s factories are located at the following 
places :

     1. 77,Netaji Subhas Road, UƩarpara,
      Dist. Hooghly, W.B.

     2. E-26/29, Industrial Area, Satpur, Nashik - 422 007
     3. Paper Machine Wire Unit
      73, Industrial Estate, Satpur, Nashik - 422 007

 m) Address for correspondence : With the Company :
     Share Department
     25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 2nd Floor,
     Kolkata - 700 013
     Tel. Nos : (033) 2234-9308/09/10   
     Fax No. : (033) 2211-6880
     E-mail  : secretarial@shalimarwires.com
     Website : hƩp://www.shalimarwires.com
     CIN : L74140WB1996PLC08151

     With the Registrar :
     Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt.Ltd.
     6, Mangoe Lane,2nd Floor, Kolkata – 700 001
     Tel. Nos : (033) 2243-5029/5809,(033) 2248-2248
    Fax  : (033) 2248 5787
    E-mail : mdpl@cal..vsnl.net.in
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Appendix
DECLARATION INDER CLAUSE 49 

As provided under Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Board members and 
the senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for 
the year ended 31st march, 2014. 

Place  :  Kolkata  Sunil Khaitan
Dated : 5th August, 2014  Chairman & Managing Director

APPENDIX
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2014

Category No. of 
shareholders

% of 
shareholders

No. of
shares held

% of 
shareholding

Promoters/Directors & their relaƟves including associate 
companies. 

19 0.13 2,78,23,982 73.99

Financial InsƟtuƟons/Insurance Companies/Mutual Funds & Bank 24 0.16 7,77,420 2.06

Non-resident Indians/Overseas corporate bodies. 27 0.18 11,813 0.03
Other bodies corporate 152 1.03 69,58,898 18.51
Indian Public 14487 98.50 20,33,010 5.41
Total 14709 100.00 3,76,05,123 100.00

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2014

No. of Equity shares held No. of shareholders % of shareholders No. of shares held % of shareholding

1-500 14248 96.86 8,48,710 2.26
501-1000 213 1.45 1,74,923 0.47
1001-5000 170 1.16 3,82,824 1.01
5001-10000 28 0.19 2,09,462 0.56
10001 and above 50 0.34 3,59,89,204 95.70
Total 14709 100.00 3,76,05,123 100.00

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
TO THE MEMBERS OF SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
We have examined the compliance of condiƟons of corporate governance by Shalimar Wires Industries Limited for the year ended 31st 
March, 2014, as sƟpulated in Clause 49 of the lisƟng agreement of the said company with the stock exchanges.
The compliance of condiƟon of condiƟons of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management.  Our examined was limited 
to procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the condiƟons of corporate 
governance.  It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, and the representaƟon made by the 
directors and the management, we cerƟfy that the company has complied with the condiƟons of corporate governance as sƟpulated 
in the above-menƟoned lisƟng agreement.
As required by the guidance note issued by the InsƟtute of chartered accountants of India, we have to state as per the records 
maintained, there were no investors grievances remaining unaƩended/pending for more than 30 days as at 31 March, 2014.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or effecƟveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FR No. 302034E
CA P.K. BhaƩacharya

21, Old Court House Street Membership No. 015899 
Kolkata, 5th August, 2014  Partner
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the members of Shalimar Wires Industries Limited

1. Report on the Financial Statements

 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shalimar Wires Industries Limited (the 
Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2014 and  the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

2.  Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the 
Act”), read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

3. Auditor’s Responsibility

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatements.

 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

4. Opinion

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said 
financial statements, subject to our comments in sub paragraphs (a) to (e) of Para 6 below together 
with its concluding sub-paragraph (f) of the said Para regarding the impacts on the various items of the 
financial statements, read with other notes thereon, give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 1956 in the manner so required and also subject to our observations in Paragraph 6(f) herein below 
regarding non-provisions/non receipt of confirmation as stated in Para 5 below, give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India :

 a. In the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2014, and

 b. In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss of the profit for the year ended on that date



21

SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

 c. In the case of Cash Flow Statement of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

5. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 i)  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003(“the Order”), as amended, issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227of the Act, we enclose 
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said order to the 
extent applicable to the company. 

 ii)  As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that :

  a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

  b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those books;

  c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; and

  d)  In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 
211 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September, 
2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013;  
except compliance of Accounting Standard 29 regarding Contingent Liabilities (Refer Foot Note 
No.2 to 4 of Note No-28, the quantum of non-provision in respect whereof is not ascertained 
pending settlement/disposal of appeals.

  e) On the basis of  written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March 2014 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of Directors are disqualified 
as on 31st March 2014 from being appointed as Directors in terms of section 274(1) (g) of the 
Companies Act, 1956

6. Attention is invited to the following :

 a) Refer Note No. 13 and 18 of the financial statement regarding non-provision against Long Term 
and Short Term Loans and Advances given  amounting to Rs. 406.18 Lacs and Rs.159.22 Lacs 
respectively.

 b) Refer Note No.14 of the financial statement regarding non-provision against Claim Receivable 
amounting to Rs. 26.98 Lacs.

 c) Refer Note No.16 of the financial statement regarding non-provision against Trade Receivable 
amounting to Rs.33.21 Lacs.

 d) Refer Note No.30 of the financial statement regarding amount due from Trade Receivables and 
Loans & Advances given and due to Trade Payables are subject to confirmation from the respective 
parties. 

 e) Refer Note No.34 of the financial statement regarding preparation and presentation of financial 
statements on a going concern basis for reasons stated therein. The appropriateness of assumption 
of going concern is critically dependent upon the Company’s ability to raise requisite finance / 
generate cash flows in the near future to meet its obligations.

 f) The above non provisions constitute a departure from the accounting standard refer to in sub section 
(3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act. Without considering item nos (d) of  Para 5 and (d) and 
(e) of Para 6 above, whose impact on the Company’s profit is presently non ascertainable, had the 
management made the provisions in respect of item nos (a), (b) and (c) of Para 6 above : 
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  i) Profit for the year would have decreased by Rs. 625.59 lacs;

  ii) Long Term and Short Term Loans and Advances would have decreased by Rs. 406.18 Lacs and 
Rs.159.22 Lacs respectively;

  iii) Other Non-Current Assets would have decreased by Rs. 26.98 Lacs;

  iv) Trade Receivables would have decreased by Rs. 33.21 Lacs; and 

  v) The Shareholders’ Fund would have been lower by Rs. 625.59 Lacs.

 For S. S. KOTHARI & CO.
 Chartered Accountants
 FR. No. 302034E

CA. P. K. Bhattacharya
21, Old Court House Street Membership No. 015899
Kolkata, 19th May, 2014 Partner 

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014 :

i. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of its fixed assets.

 b) The fixed assets, except those at the Strip & Wire Unit at Nasik, which is under closure, have 
been physically verified under a phased program of physical verification. To the best of our knowledge, 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 c) The Company has not disposed off substantial part of fixed assets during the year. 

ii. a) The inventories, except those at the Strip & Wire Unit at Nasik, which is under closure, have 
been physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals. 

 b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedure of 
physical verification of stocks followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in relation to 
the size of the Company and nature of its business.

 c) On the basis of our examination, we are of the opinion that the Company is maintaining proper 
records of inventory. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical 
stocks and the book records.

iii. a)  The Company has granted unsecured loans to two parties covered in the Register maintained under 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The maximum amount involved during the year was Rs. 
159.22 Lacs and the year end balance was Rs. 159.22 Lacs.

 b) In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the rate of interest and other terms and 
conditions of unsecured loans given by the Company are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of 
the Company except that no interest is being charged on these loans since 1st April, 2002. 

 c) Receipt of the principal amount and interest on the above loans are not regular.

 d) As explained to us, the aforesaid loans given have become overdue and are doubtful. However, 
necessary legal action have been initiated by the Company in these regards.

 g) The Company has taken unsecured loans from a party covered in the Register maintained under 
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section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The maximum amount involved during the year was Rs. 
16.75 Lacs and the year end balance was Rs. 16.75 Lacs.

 h) The above loans are interest free and other terms and conditions thereof are not prejudicial to the 
interests of the company.

 i)    There has been no repayment of the principal amount against the aforesaid loans during the year. 
However, 90% of the original loan is written back pursuant to BIFR order dated 10th June, 2010.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system, commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for purchase 
of inventory and fixed assets and also for the sale of goods.  During the course of our audit, we have not 
observed any continuing failure to correct major weakness in internal control system.

v. To the best of our information and explanations given to us, no contracts or arrangements were entered 
into during the year as referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Therefore, provisions of 
clause (v) of paragraph 4 of the said order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of section 58A and 58AA or any other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed there under.

vii. In our opinion, the internal audit system of the Company is commensurate with the size of Company and 
nature of its business except that no internal audit has been carried out during the year at the  Strip 
& Wire Unit at Nasik, which is under closure.

viii. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 209(1)(d) of 
the Companies Act, 1956 for any of the products of the company.

ix. a) According to the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise 
Duty and other statutory dues with appropriate authorities, except the following amounts which are 
outstanding as on 31st March 2014 for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming 
payable :

Sl. No. Name of Act Nature of Dues Years 

(Rs. Lacs)

Amount not paid

1 CST Act, 1956 Sales Tax 2003-2004 0.72

2 Bombay States Stamps Act, 1958 Stamp Duty and Interest thereon 2001-2010 210.32

As explained to us, the Company does not have any dues in respect of Wealth Tax, Service Tax and Cess.

 b) The disputed statutory dues aggregating to Rs 4654.83 Lacs that have not been deposited on account 
of matters pending before appropriate authorities are as under :

Sl. 
No.

Name of Act Nature of Dues Amount not 
paid due to 
dispute 
(Rs. Lacs)

Year to which it Relates Forum

1 WBST Act, 1994 Tax & Penalty 0.11 1988-1989 The AddiƟonal Commissioner of Commercial 
Taxes, Kolkata

2 WBST Act, 1994 Tax , Interest & 
Penalty

4.22 1998-99,&2002-03 The AddiƟonal Commissioner of Commercial 
Taxes, Kolkata

3 WBST Act, 1994 Tax & Penalty 8.17 1980-81,1993-94, 2000-
01, 2003-04 & 2004-05

The West Bengal Commercial Taxes 
Appellate & Revision Board, Kolkata.
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Sl. 
No.

Name of Act Nature of Dues Amount not 
paid due to 
dispute 
(Rs. Lacs)

Year to which it Relates Forum

4 WBST Act, 1994 Tax & Penalty 4.73 2001-02 The West Bengal TaxaƟon Tribunal

5 WBST Act, 1994 Tax & Penalty 16.79 2005-06 & 2006-07,2007-
08 and 2008-09

The West Bengal Commercial Taxes 
Appellate & Revision Board, Kolkata.

6 CST Act, 1956 Tax, Interest & 
Penalty

190.53 1999-00 The Sr. Joint Commissioner of  Commercial 
Taxes.

CST Act, 1956 Tax, Interest & 
Penalty

130.12 2004-05 The West Bengal Commercial Taxes 
Appellate & Revision Board, Kolkata.

7 CST Act, 1956 Tax 0.72 1988-89 The Joint Commissioner of Commercial 
Taxes, Kolkata

8 CST Act, 1956 Tax, Penalty & 
Interest

529.26  1998-99 & 2002-03 The AddiƟonal Commissioner of Commercial 
Taxes, Kolkata

9 CST Act, 1956 Tax, Penalty & 
Interest

340.56 1996-97 & 2001-02 The AddiƟonal Commissioner of Commercial 
Taxes, Kolkata

10 CST Act, 1956 Tax, Penalty & 
Interest

795.60 1993-94, 1995-96, 
1997-98, 2000-01 &
2003-04

The West Bengal Commercial Taxes Appellate 
& Revision Board, Kolkata.

11 CST Act, 1956 Tax, Penalty & 
Interest

75.08 2005-06, 2006-07
2007-08

The West Bengal Commercial Taxes Appellate 
& Revision Board, Kolkata.

12 CST Act, 1956 Tax, Penalty & 
Interest

17.19 2008-09
2009-10

The West Bengal Commercial Taxes Appellate 
& Revision Board, Kolkata.

13 Central Excise Act, 1944 Tax, Penalty & 
Interest

1917.86 1987-97,1992-93,
1994-95,1999-00, 
2002-03,2003-04 
& 2009-10

Commissioner (Appeals) Central Excise, 
Kolkata-IV

14 Central Excise Act, 1944 Tax 11.23 1989-90 & 2005-2006 Hon’ble High Court, Mumbai

15 Central Excise Act, 1944 Tax & Penalty 4.34 2003-04 Commissioner (Appeals) Nashik

16 Central Excise Act, 1944 Tax 1.73 2002-03 CESTAT, Mumbai

17 Central/Delhi Sales Tax 
Act

Tax 0.62 1999-2002 The Asst. Commissioner, Sales Tax, Delhi

18 Central/ Gujarat Sales 
Tax Act

Tax & Penalty 5.50 1999-2000 & 2002-03 The Asst. Commissioner, Sales Tax, 
Ahmedabad

19 Customs Act, 1962 Tax 573.25 2000-03 Commissioner, Customs, Nasik & Mumbai

20 NMC Octroi Case no 
476/1989 & 4/1992 

Tax 11.69 1989-90 &1991-92 Hon’ble High Court, Mumbai

21 NMC Octroi Case no 
476/1989 & 4/1992 

Tax & Penalty 6.88 2007-08 &2008-09 Hon’ble High Court, Mumbai

x. The accumulated losses of the Company have exceeded fifty percent of its net worth though it has 
not incurred cash loss during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding 
financial year.
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xi. The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues of Rs.1162.55 lacs (excluding SICOM and Sale 
Tax Loan dues) to financial institutions and debenture holders. 

xii. The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, 
debentures and other similar securities.

xiii. The provisions of any special statute applicable to Chit Fund, Nidhi or Mutual Benefit Society are not 
applicable to the Company.

xiv. The Company is not trading or dealing in shares, debentures. The Company has maintained proper 
records of transactions and contracts in respect of investment in shares and timely entries have been 
made therein. All investments have been held by the Company in its own name.

xv. The Company has not given any guarantees for loans taken by others from banks during the year. 

xvi. The Company has neither taken any term loan during the year nor applied during the year any part of the 
term loans taken in earlier years.

xvii. According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance 
Sheet of the company, we report that short-term funds have not been used for long-term investment.

xviii.According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not made 
any preferential allotment of shares to parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

xix. The Company has not issued any debenture during the year. 

xx. The Company has not raised any money during the year by public issue.

xxi. Based upon the audit procedure performed and the information and explanation given by the Company, 
we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year that causes 
the financial statements materially misstated.

 For S. S. KOTHARI & CO.
 Chartered Accountants
 FR. No. 302034E

CA. P. K. Bhattacharya
21, Old Court House Street Membership No. 015899
Kolkata, 19th May, 2014 Partner 



26

SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

PARTCULARS Schedule As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Shareholedrs' Fund

a) Share Capital 2  368,645,112  356,745,112 

b) Reserves and Surplus 3  (1,822,656,511)  (1,454,011,399)  (1,837,438,621)  (1,480,693,509)

2. Non-Current LiabiliƟes

a) Long Term Borrowings 4  508,680,149  532,666,168 

b) Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes (Net) 5 –  -   

c) Other Long Term LiabiliƟes 6  46,707,997  53,206,225 

d) Long Term Provisions 7  39,970,190  595,358,336  35,343,098  621,215,491 

3. Current LiabiliƟes

b) Trade Payables  78,971,893  69,514,624 

 c) Other Current LiabiliƟes  2,053,040,063  2,025,409,651 

d) Short Term Provisions  7,765,354  2,139,777,310  6,293,488  2,101,217,763 

Grand Total  1,281,124,248  1,241,739,745 

II. ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets

a) Fixed Assets

i) Tangible Assets  414,688,157  437,736,124 

ii) Intangible Assets  13,082,072  17,525,796 

iii) Capital Work-in-Progress  96,234,035  42,824,704 

b) Non-Current Investments  516,701  2,712,401 

c) Long Term Loans and Advances  80,236,225  73,582,646 

d) Other Non-Current Assets  32,065,724  636,822,913  15,705,169  590,086,840 

2. Current Assets

a) Inventories  278,575,573  267,181,156 

b) Trade Receivables  291,865,192  305,905,994 

c) Cash and Cash Equivalent  22,374,198  19,329,499 

d) Short Term Loans and Advances  50,893,342  58,110,182 

e)  Other Current Assets  593,029  644,301,334  1,126,074  651,652,905 

Grand Total  1,281,124,248  1,241,739,745 

Significant AccounƟng Policies  1   
Other Disclosers  28-40   

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an intrigral part of the financial statements.   

As per our report of even date.    

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO. Sunil  Khaitan   Dipak Dasgupta
Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director
FR NO. 302034E    
CA P. K. BhaƩacharya    
Partner    
Membership No.015899 S. J. Sengupta  S. K. Kejriwal
Kolkata 19th May, 2014 Sr V.P.& CFO  Company Secretary

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2014
(Amount in Rs.)
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PARTCULARS Note No 2013-14 2012-13
I. Revenue from OperaƟons 20

a) Sale of products  981,973,276  1,005,813,850 

Less : Excise Duty  84,359,565  90,214,478 

Net Turnover   897,613,711   915,599,372

b) Sale of Services – –

c) Other OperaƟng Revenues  8,682,788  906,296,499  9,380,027  924,979,399 

II. Other Income 21  17,152,957  12,819,280 

III. Total Revenue ( I + II )  923,449,456  937,798,679 

IV. Expenses :

Cost of Materials Consumed 22  325,290,542  288,371,156 

Purchases of Stock in Trade  –    –   

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 
Work in Progress  & Stock in Trade

23  (12,304,541)  3,921,483 

Employees Benefits 24  182,897,460  173,351,445 
Finance Cost 25  68,655,813  30,244,042 
DepriciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon 29  66,829,803  65,139,833 
Other Expenses 26  314,946,405  277,461,856 
Total Expenses  946,315,483  838,489,815 

V. Profit before excepƟonal and extraordinary 
items and tax.( III - IV )

 (22,866,027)  99,308,864 

VI. ExcepƟonal Items 27  46,536,526  –    –   
VII. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 23,670,499 –
VIII. Extraordinary Items  –    –    –    –   
IX. Profit before tax (VII - VIII)  23,670,499  99,308,864 
X. Tax Expenses:

i)  Current Tax  –    –   
ii) Deferred Tax  –    –    –    –   

XI. Profit (Loss) for the period from conƟnuing 
operaƟons (IX - X)  

 23,670,499  99,308,864 

XII. Profit ( Loss ) from disconƟnuing operaƟons  (8,888,390)  (8,578,379)

XIII. Tax Expenses of disconƟnuing operaƟons  –    –   
XIV. Profit (Loss) from disconƟnuing operaƟons 

(aŌer tax) (XII - XIII)
 (8,888,390)  (8,578,379)

XV. Profit ( Loss ) for the period  ( XI - XIV )  14,782,110  90,730,485 
XVI. Earnings Per Equity Share: 39

i)  Basic  0.39  2.87 
ii) Diluted  0.39  2.87 

Significant AccounƟng Policies 1
Other Disclosers 28-40

The accompanying notes 1 to 40 are an intrigral part of the financial statements.   

As per our report of even date.    

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO. Sunil  Khaitan   Dipak Dasgupta
Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director
FR NO. 302034E    
CA P. K. BhaƩacharya    
Partner    
Membership No.015899 S. J. Sengupta  S. K. Kejriwal
Kolkata 19th May, 2014 Sr V.P.& CFO  Company Secretary

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014
(Amount in Rs.)
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       PARTCULARS  FOR THE 
 YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2014 

 FOR THE 
 YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2013

A. Cash Flow from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes :

Net Profit (Loss) before Tax  14,782,110  90,730,485 

Adjustments For :

DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon expense  68,391,120  66,761,295 

(Profit)/Loss on Sale/Discard of Tangible Fixed Assets  1,679,252  304,671 

ExcepƟonal Items  46,536,526  –   

Interest Income  (1,268,015)  (1,770,730)

Net (Gain)/Loss on Sale of Investment  (2,263,260)  –   

Finance Cost  68,655,813  31,907,375 

Sundry Balances WriƩen Off  16,806  350,000 

Unspent LiabiliƟes WriƩen Back  (3,022,991)  (3,678,196)

Provision for Doubƞul Debt  457,798  –   

Debts and advances wriƩen off  2,294,810  –   
OperaƟng Profit before Working Capital Changes  196,259,969  184,604,900 

Adjustments For:

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term LiabiliƟes  (3,475,237)  (7,758,309)

Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions  4,627,092  1,975,125 

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions  1,471,866  1,401,901 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  9,457,269  6,078,436 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current LiabiliƟes  27,630,413  (12,355,056)

Decrease/(Increase) in Non-Current Investment  –    208,787 

Decrease/(Increase) in Long Term Loans & Advances  (6,499,898)  24,561,688 

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non-Current Assets  (16,377,361)  (4,510,639)

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (11,394,417)  (20,938,676)

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables  11,288,194  (26,782,512)

Decrease/(Increase) in Short Term Loans & Advances  7,216,840  (9,105,989)

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets  533,045  (228,468)

Cash Generated from/(used in) OperaƟng AcƟviƟes 220,737,775 137,151,188

Tax Expense  (153,681)  (144,780)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) OperaƟng AcƟviƟes (A) 220,584,094 137,006,408

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014
(Amount in Rs.)
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       PARTCULARS  FOR THE 
 YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2014 

 FOR THE 
 YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2013

B. Cash Flow from InvesƟng AcƟviƟes :

Interest Income  1,268,015  1,770,730 

Proceeds from sale of Non-Current Investments  4,458,959  –   

AddiƟon to Tangible Fixed Assets  (96,822,903)  (132,497,243)

AddiƟon to Intangible Fixed Assets  –    (21,521,100)

Sale of Tangible Fixed Assets 834,892 1,038,022

Net Cash flow from/(used in) InvesƟng AcƟviƟes (B)  (90,261,037)  (151,209,591)

C. Cash Flow from Financing AcƟviƟes :

Proceeds from Equity Shares  11,900,000 26,100,000

Repayment from Long term Borrowings  (23,986,019)  (640,442)

ExcepƟonal Items  (46,536,526)

Interest Expense  (68,655,813)  (31,907,375)

Net Cash Flow from Financing AcƟviƟes (C)  (127,278,358)  (6,447,817)
Net Increase/(Decrease ) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  3,044,699  (20,651,000)

Closing Balance of Cash & cash Equivalents 22,374,198  19,329,499 

Opening Balance of Cash & cash Equivalents 19,329,499  39,980,499 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  3,044,699  (20,651,000)

As per our report of even date.    

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO. Sunil  Khaitan   Dipak Dasgupta
Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director
FR NO. 302034E    
CA P. K. BhaƩacharya    
Partner    
Membership No.015899 S. J. Sengupta  S. K. Kejriwal
Kolkata 19th May, 2014 Sr V.P.& CFO  Company Secretary

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014
(Amount in Rs.)

Notes :

1.  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the " Indirect Method " as set out in AccounƟng Standard 
-3 on Cash Flow Statement noƟfied under the Companies (AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2006.

2.  AddiƟon to Fixed Assets include movement of Capital Work in Progress during the year. 

3.  Proceeds from Long term Borrowings are shown net of repayments. 

4.  Figures in brackets represent cash ouƞlow from respecƟve acƟviƟes. 

5.  Cash & cash Equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use.

6.  As breakup of Cash & cash equivalents is also available in Note No.17, reconciliaton of items of Cash & cash 
equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement with the equivalent items reported in the Balance Sheet is not required 
and hence it provided.
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NOTE NO. : 1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convenƟon and are in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounƟng principles in India and provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The significant accounƟng policies followed 
by the Company are stated below :       

1) RecogniƟon of Income & Expenditure :      

 Income and Expenditure are recognised on accrual basis.     

2) Fixed Assets :    

 Fixed Assets are stated at original cost net of accumulated depreciaƟon and impairments.

 Cost includes acquisiƟon price, aƩributable expenses (including in respect of assets taken on lease) and pre-
operaƟonal expenses including finance charges and issue expenses, wherever applicable. 

 Intangible assets are recorded at the consideraƟon paid for acquisiƟon of such assets and are carried at cost of 
acquisiƟon less accumulated amorƟzaƟon and impairment, if any. 

 Expenditure (including financing cost relaƟng to borrowed funds for construcƟon or acquisiƟon of Fixed assets) 
incurred on projects under implementaƟon are being treated as pre-operaƟve expenses pending allocaƟon to the 
assets and are shown under "Capital Work in Progress".

 Impairment Loss is recognised where applicable when the carrying amount of the Fixed Assets of a Cash generaƟng 
unit exceeds its market value or value in use, whichever is higher.    

3) DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon :

 DepreciaƟon has been charged during the year on all assets at straight line rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to 
the Companies Act,1956, as amended. DepreciaƟon has been calculated with reference to the month of addiƟon/
sale.  

 Cost of Leasehold Land and installaƟon and other expenses incurred on machineries taken on lease are amorƟsed 
over the period of the respecƟve lease. 

 Cost of acquisiƟon of Patents are amorƟsed over the period of patent right.

 Technical Knowhow fees is amorƟsed over a period of 5 years with effect from the year of commencement of 
commercial producƟon. 

4) Inventories : 

 Inventories are stated at 'cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all cost of purchase, cost 
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present locaƟon and condiƟon. Cost 
formulae used are 'Weighted Average Cost'. 

5) Investments : 

 Long Term Investments are carried at cost and Provision for diminuƟon is made to recognise a decline, other than 
temporary, in the value of long term investments, script wise. 

6) Foreign Currency TransacƟons : 

 (a)   TransacƟons in Foreign currency are iniƟally recorded at the exchange rate at which the transacƟon is carried 
out. 

 (b)   Monetary Assets and LiabiliƟes related to foreign currency transacƟons remaining outstanding at the year 
end are translated at the year end rates. 

 (c)   Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transacƟon.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 (d)   Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on seƩlement or on translaƟon at the year 
end is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

 (e)   In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate 
and the rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference. The premium or discount on 
forward exchange contracts is recognized over the period of the respecƟve contract. 

7) Research & Development Expenditure : 

 Revenue expenditure is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss and Capital expenditure is added to the cost of fixed 
assets in the year in which it is incurred.

8) Employee Benefits : 

 (a)   Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement 
of Profit & Loss of the year in which the related service is rendered. 

 b)   Post employment and other long-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Statement 
of Profit & Loss for the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the 
present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuaƟons. Actuarial gains and losses in 
respect of post employment and other long-term employee benefits are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.    

9) Provisions, ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and ConƟngent Assets : 

 Provisions are recognised in respect of obligaƟons where, based on the evidence available, their existence at 
the Balance Sheet date is considered probable. ConƟngent LiabiliƟes are shown by way of Notes to Accounts in 
respect of obligaƟons where, based on the evidence available, their existence at the Balance Sheet date is not 
considered probable, hence not provided for. ConƟngent assets are not recognised in the accounts.

10) Borrowing Costs :

 Borrowing Costs that are aƩributable to the acquisiƟon or construcƟon of qualifying assets are capitalised as part 
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready 
for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they 
are incurred.        

11) Taxes on Income :

 Income-tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is made 
on the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The Deferred tax Asset and 
Deferred tax Liability is calculated by applying tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or substanƟvely 
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax Assets arising mainly on account of brought forward losses 
and unabsorbed depreciaƟon under tax laws, are recognised only if there is a virtual certainity of its realisaƟon, 
supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax Assets on account of other Ɵming differences are recognised only 
to the extent there is a reasonable certainity that the assets can be realized in future.  

12) Impairment of Assets : 

 Impairment loss, if any,  is recognised to the extent, the carrying amount of assets exceed their recoverable 
amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present 
value of esƟmated future cash flows expected to arise from the conƟnuing use of an asset and from its disposal at 
the end of its useful life. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there is an indicaƟon that the impairment losses 
recognised no longer exist or have decreased. 

 Such reversals are recognised as an increase in carrying amount of assets to the extent that it does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amorƟsaƟon or depreciaƟon) had no impairment loss 
been recognised in previous years.
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 AŌer impairment, depreciaƟon or amorƟsaƟon on assets is provided on the revised carrying amount of the 
respecƟve asset over its remaining useful life.

13) OperaƟng Cycle : 

 All Assets and LiabiliƟes have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operaƟng 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies’ Act, 1956. Based on the nature of services 
provided and Ɵme between the rendering of services and their realizaƟon in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its operaƟng cycle as less than 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current 
classificaƟon of assets and liabiliƟes.

14) Cash flow statement : 

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transacƟons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operaƟng cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with invesƟng or financing flows. The cash flows from operaƟng, 
invesƟng and financing acƟviƟes of the Company are segregated. 

15) Segment ReporƟng : 

 Segments are idenƟfied based on the dominant source and nature of risks and returns and the internal organisaƟon 
and management structure. The accounƟng policies adopted for segment reporƟng are in line with the accounƟng 
policies of the Company. In addiƟon, the following specific accounƟng policies have been followed for segment 
reporƟng: 

 (a)   Inter segment revenue is accounted for based on the transacƟon price agreed to between segments which 
is primarily market led.  

 (b)   Revenue and expenses are idenƟfied to segments on the basis of their relaƟonship to the operaƟng acƟviƟes 
of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to 
segments on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as "Unallocable".
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As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

NOTE : 2 Share Capital
a) Authorised :   

i) 50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each  100,000,000  100,000,000 
ii) 5,000,000 Preference Shares of  Rs. 100/- each  500,000,000  500,000,000 

        Total  600,000,000  600,000,000 

b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up :
i) Equity Shares Fully Paid Up:

37,605,123 (Previous Year 31,655,123) 
Equity Shares of Rs.2 /-each

 75,210,246  63,310,246 

ii) Preference Share Fully Paid Up:
2,934,349, 8% CumulaƟve Redeemable 
Preference Share of Rs,100/- each

 293,434,866  293,434,866 

Total  368,645,112  356,745,112 

c) ReconciliaƟon of the number of Equity Shares Outstanding :
ParƟculars 2013-14 2012-13

Nos Nos Nos Nos

Number of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  31,655,123  31,655,123
Add: Number of shares alloƩed as fully paid up during the year         
to lenders on conversion of loan into share capital without  
payment being received in cash.

 5,950,000  5,950,000 – –

Number of Shares outstanding at the end of the year  37,605,123  31,655,123 
d) ReconciliaƟon of the number of Preference Shares Outstanding :

ParƟculars 2013-14 2012-13
Nos Nos Nos Nos

Number of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  2,934,349  2,934,349 
Number of Shares outstanding at the end of the year  2,934,349  2,934,349

e) Shares in the Company held by each Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares. 
Name of Shareholders Number of 

Shares held 
Nos

% of Share
held
Nos

Number of 
Shares held 

Nos

% of Share
held
Nos

Sunita Khaitan  10,118,900  26.91  10,118,900 31.97
Reliance Sheet Works Pvt Ltd  7,251,481  19.28  7,251,481 22.91
Amit Commercial Co.Ltd  7,230,132  19.23  7,230,132 22.84
Asset ReconstrucƟon Co.Ltd  5,950,000  15.82  -    -   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in Rs.)

f)  In terms of the Order dated 10th June, 2010 of the BIFR, 5,950,000 fully paid Equity Shares of Rs.2/- have been issued at par during the year to 
ARCIL towards conversion of part of the term loan due to them for Rs.11,900,000/- without payment being received in cash. 

g)  Rights, Preferences and RestricƟons aƩached to shares:     
 i)  Each Equity Share holder holding shares of Rs.2/- each is eligible for one vote per share held and are enƟtled to receive dividends as 

declared from Ɵme to Ɵme. In the event of liquidaƟon the equity shares holdes are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company 
aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal creditors in proporƟon to their Shareholdings. 

 ii)  8% CumulaƟve Redeemable Preference shares issued as per IDBI sancƟon dated 13th June 2006 by way of converƟng their overdue 
interest and is redeemable in sixteen installments commencing from 1st April 2017 and ending on 1st January 2021. CumulaƟve Preference 
dividend is expected to be paid annually over a period of four years commencing from the financial years 2017-18, based on the projected 
profitability and cash flows of the Company.     
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NOTE : 3 Reserve & Surplus 
PARTICULARS Balance as at

1st April, 2013
AddiƟon DeducƟon Balance as at   

31st March, 2014
 a)  General Reserve  28,763,318  –    –    28,763,318 
 b)  Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss  (1,866,201,939)  14,782,110  –    (1,851,419,829)

 (1,837,438,621)  14,782,110  –    (1,822,656,511)
Note:    
General Reserve is primarily created to comply with the requirements of SecƟon 205(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956. 
This is a free reserve and can be uƟlized for any general purpose like for issue of bonus shares, payment of dividend, 
buy back of shares etc.

NOTE : 4 Long Term Borrowings
PARTICULARS As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Debentures

Secured

i)     1,000,000 ( Previous Year 1,000,000 ) 18% 
Redeemable Non-ConverƟble Debentures of 
Rs.100/- each privately placed with IDBI.

 100,000,000  100,000,000 

Less : Not disbursed by IDBI  10,000,000  90,000,000  10,000,000  90,000,000 

ii)     350,000 (Previous Year 350,000) 19% Redeemable
 Non-ConverƟble Debenture of Rs. 100/- each   
 privately placed with NIA.

 2,145,658  2,145,658 

iii)   100,000 (Previous Year 100,000) 19% 
Redeemable Non-ConverƟble Debentures of 
Rs.100/- each privately placed with OIC.

 8,988,957  8,988,957 

iv)   100,000 ( Previous Year 100,000 ) 20% 
Redeemable Non-ConverƟble Debentures of 
Rs. 100/- each privately placed with NIA.

 10,546,481  10,546,481 

v)    374,030 ( Previous Year 374,097) 14% 
 Redeemable Debentures of Rs.30/-each (Non-
ConverƟble PorƟon)

 11,214,878  11,216,887 

vi)   249,375 ( Previous Year 249,375) 14% 
Redeemable Debentures of Rs.20/- each.(Non-
ConverƟble PorƟon)

 4,987,500  4,987,500 

vii)  10,300 ( Previous Year 10,300) 14% Redeemable 
Debentures of Rs.10/- each.(Non-ConverƟble 
PorƟon)

 103,000  103,000 

 16,305,378  16,305,378 

Less: Allotment Money in arrear  87,360  87,360 

Less: Unpaid Matured Debenture-Refer Note 
No-9(d)

Transfer to Investor ProtecƟon Fund  15,206,388  15,208,397 

Other Overdue Debenture  1,011,630  –    1,011,630  –   

 111,681,096  111,681,096 

(Amount in Rs.)
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PARTICULARS As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 4 Long Term Borrowings

b) Term Loan :

i)    From Banks / Financial InsƟtuƟons

       Secured:

       ARCIL  504,281,568  516,181,568 

       IDBI  99,000,000  99,000,000 

       IDBI (ACS)  43,680,081  50,681,935 

 646,961,649  665,863,503 

Less : Overdue PorƟon of Long Term Debt  109,268,688  256,000,000 

Less : Current maturity of Long Term Debt 
(Refer Note -9(a)        144,538,466 393,154,495  –    409,863,503

ii)  Other ParƟes

       Unsecured: 

      Body Corporates  1,125,000  1,325,000 

      SICOM  4,757,756  4,757,756 

        Sale Tax Loan (Under Sales Tax Deferral Scheme)  28,906,419  28,906,419 

 34,789,175  34,989,175 

Less : Overdue PorƟon of Long Term Debt  26,931,340  20,198,505 

Less : Current maturiƟes of Long Term Debts 
(Refer note no 9 (a)  6,732,835  1,125,000  6,732,835  8,057,835 

 394,279,495  417,921,338 

c) Loans and Advances from Related ParƟes:

    Unsecured:  –    –    –   

        Mr.Sunil Kumar Khaitan  1,675,000  1,675,000 

d) Long Term MaturiƟes of Finance Lease.(CAR)

    Secured:

    HDFC Bank Ltd  2,205,991  2,504,819 

    Tata Motors Finance Ltd  585  62,522 

    Family Credit Ltd  25,204  117,358 

 2,231,780  2,684,699 

Less Current maturiƟes of finance lease 
(Refer Note-9(b)  1,187,222  1,044,558  1,295,965  1,388,734 

 1,044,558  1,388,734 

Total  508,680,149  532,666,168 

NOTES:     
Terms of RedempƟon/Repayment :     
a)  Debentures.     
 i) In respect of Note-4(a)(i) above, pursuant to the BIFR Order dated 10th June, 2010 and subsequent rescheduling made by 

the IDBI repayment will start from the year 2013-14 and end on 2016-17. The Company has yet to make repayment of the 
Principal and Interest thereon to IDBI since in this regard it has submiƩed a modified DRS Scheme to the Honorable Board 
of BIFR, approval of which from the BIFR is sƟll awaited. Although the said scheme has received the consent of the other 
major lender ARCIL.

 ii)  In respect of Note-4(a) (ii) to (iv) above, the repayment will be made aŌer all the secured creditors agreeing the restructuring 
scheme pursuant to the BIFR Order dated 10thJune, 2010 have been fully paid off.

 iii)  In respect of Note-4(a)(v) to (vii) above, repayable at par on the expiry of 7th,8th and 9th years from the date of allotment 
i.e. 4th February,1992     



36

SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

b)  Term Loans :     
 i)  ARCIL:During the year, ARCIL has restructure the schedule of repayments of their outstanding Term Loan by segregaƟng 

total outstanding as under effecƟve from October,2013:     
             Principal    Rs.35.21 Crores                                                                   
             Interest      Rs.10.99 Crores     
     Accordingly provision has been made for the elements of interest for the year Rs.34,800,000/-,included under Finance Cost. 

Out of this, Rs.30,985,294/- has been paid during the year and the balance amount of Rs.3,814,706/- is included under 
Interest Accrued and Due.     

     As per the terms of Original SancƟon leƩer of ARCIL, no re-alignment of the principal amount would be consider Ɵll 
repayment of all the installments. Hence no adjustment has been made towards principal amount of term loan from ARCIL.

 ii)  IDBI: Pursuant to the BIFR Order dated 10th June 2010 repayment will start from the financial year 2013-14 and end on 
2016-17.   

 iii)  Unsecured loans relaƟng to promoters and body corporates are repayable aŌer the repayment of all seƩled dues of secured 
creditors are made pursuant to the RehabilitaƟon Scheme sancƟoned by BIFR vides its Order dated 10th June'2010.

 iv)  Loans from SICOM & Sale Tax Loan (Under Sales Tax Deferral Scheme) are repayable over a period of five years aŌer cutoff 
date(31.03.2009) in equal annual installments pursuant to the RehabilitaƟon Scheme sancƟoned by BIFR vides its Order 
dated 10th June,2010. 

c)  Finance Lease : 
 In respect of Note-4(d) above, repayable in monthly installments from July 2009 to January 2015 for respecƟve cars covered 

under above lease.  
Nature of Security: 
a)  Debentures
 i)  The aforesaid debentures have been secured by a Second mortgage and charge, ranking pari passu, by execuƟon of 

Debenture Trust Deed on certain immovable and movable properƟes of the Company. They are also secured by a second 
mortgage and charge on the immovable and movable assets of the Company at UƩarpara and  Nasik (save and except book 
debts) both present and future but excluding assets purchased / to be purchased under Deferred Payment Scheme, Asset 
Credit Scheme and equipments purchased/to be purchased against Rupee and Foreign Currency Loans granted / to be 
granted by Financial InsƟtuƟon subject, however, to prior charges created /to be created in favour of the Company's bankers 
on stocks and  receivables for securing borrowings for working capital requirements.

b)  Term Loans :
 i)  Term Loans from Financial InsƟtuƟons and Banks, except term loan from IDBI (ACS) of Rs.43,680,081/- ( Previous Year 

Rs.50,681,935/- ) as stated herein aŌer, are secured/to be secured by pari passu first charge by deposit of Ɵtle deeds of all 
the immovable and movable properƟes, both  present and future subject, however to prior charges to created/to be created 
in favour of the Company's bankers on stocks and receivables for securing borrowings for working capital requirements.

 ii)  Term Loan from IDBI (ACS) of Rs.43,680,081/- (Previous Year Rs.50,681,935/-) under various Schemes of the Financial 
InsƟtuƟon are  secured  by exclusive charge on  Fixed Assets purchased under relevant schemes.

c)  Finance Lease :
 In respect of Note-4(d) above the aforesaid leases are secured by the hypothecaƟon of the cars.

Period and amount in conƟnuing default:

Nature of Loans As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Amount of 
Default

Due Since Amount of 
Default

Due Since

i) Secured-Term Loan  1,600,000 Oct'2013  –   June'2011

Assets Restrucing Company (India) Limited (ARCIL)  1,700,000 Nov'2013  37,000,000 Sept'2011

Do  1,700,000 Dec'2013  40,000,000 Dec'2011

Do  1,700,000 Jan '2014  55,000,000 Mar'2012

Do  1,700,000 Feb'2014  124,000,000 Mar'2013

Do  81,800,000 Mar'2014  –   

Total  90,200,000  256,000,000 
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Nature of Loans As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013
Amount of 

Default
Due Since Amount of 

Default
Due Since

        Industrial Development Bank of India-ACS  4,676,296 Sept'2013  –   

        Industrial Development Bank of India-ACS  6,242,042 Oct'2013  –   

        Industrial Development Bank of India-ACS  6,242,042 Nov'2013  –   

        Industrial Development Bank of India-ACS  1,908,308 Dec'2013  –   

Total  19,068,688  –   

ii) Unsecured Term Loan**

SICOM  951,551 Mar'2010  951,551 Mar'2010

             Do  951,551 Mar'2011  951,551 Mar'2011

             Do  951,551 Mar'2012  951,551 Mar'2012

             Do  951,551 Mar'2013  –   

Total  3,806,204  2,854,653 

Sale Tax Loan (Under Sales Tax Deferral Scheme)  5,781,284 Mar'2010  5,781,284 Mar'2010

Do  5,781,284 Mar'2011  5,781,284 Mar'2011

Do  5,781,284 Mar'2012  5,781,284 Mar'2012

Do  5,781,284 Mar'2013  –   

Total  23,125,136  17,343,852 

**As confirmaƟon regarding waiver of interest and penalty as per BIFR Scheme has not been received SICOM and Sale Tax Loan (Under 
Sales Tax Deferral Scheme), Government of Maharastra,the amount as above could not be repaid.

NOTE : 5 Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes (Net)
PARTICULARS As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes.
Accumulated DepreciaƟon  42,710,309  39,358,457 
Deferred Tax Assets
Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid  42,710,309  39,358,457 
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) recognized in books – –

Note : Applying the principal of AccounƟng Standard-22, 'AccounƟng for Tax on Income', Deferred tax Assets have been recognized only to the extent of 
Deferred Tax Liability.

NOTE : 6 Other Long Term LiabiliƟes

   Other Payables:
Accrued Expense  35,728,642  36,286,784 
Sales Tax in connecƟon Leased Assets sales  3,812,500  4,593,236 
Finance Lease Rent (Including Interest)  15,529,479  20,731,128 
Less : Overdue Finance Lease Rent (Refer Note-9)  5,973,672  1,153,475 
Less : Current MaturiƟes of Finance Lease Rent : 
Interest (Refer Note-9)  2,388,952  7,166,855  7,251,448  12,326,205 

 46,707,997  53,206,225 

Total  46,707,997  53,206,225 

NOTES:     
Terms of Repayment:     
Finance Lease Rent in respect of Equipment Lease Scheme from IDBI is repayable for principal and interest amount commencing from 
2006-07 to 2013-14 and from 2013-14 to 2017-18 respecƟvely.      
Nature of Security:     
Equipment Lease Scheme from IDBI of Rs. 15,529,479/- (Previous Year Rs.20,731,128/-) is secured  by exclusive charge on Fixed Assets 
purchased under relevant scheme.
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NOTE : 7 Long Term Provisions
PARTICULARS As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
a)  Provision for Employees Benefits  23,264,800 
     Gratuity  25,631,381  10,353,298  33,618,098 
     Leave Encashment Refer note-39  12,613,809  38,245,190 
b) Others
     Debenture Premium  1,375,000  1,375,000 
     Provision for ConƟngencies  350,000  1,725,000  350,000  1,725,000 
Total  39,970,190  35,343,098 

NOTE : 8 Trade Payable

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and Small 
Enterprises

 1,523,412  1,850,577 

Total Outstanding Dues of Other than Micro and 
Small Enterprises

 77,448,481  67,664,047 

 78,971,893  69,514,624 
 Note :
i)  Amount dues to suppliers, are subject to confirmaƟon of the 
    parƟes.
ii) The Company has amounts due to suppliers under the Micro, 
    Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (MSMED 
    Act) as at 31st March, 2014 as under:
The Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier as at the end of the year.

 1,523,412  1,850,577 

The amount of Interest paid in terms of SecƟon 16 along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during the year.

– –

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
this Act.

– –

The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of the year.

– –

The amount of Interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, unƟl such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid to the small enterprise.

– –

The informaƟon has given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be idenƟfied as '' Micro and Small Enterprise " on the 
basis of informaƟon available with the Company.
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NOTE : 9 Other Current LiabiliƟes
PARTICULARS As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
a) Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Debts  151,271,301  6,732,835 
-Refer Note No-4(b)(i) & (ii)
b) Current MaturiƟes of Finance Lease 
ObligaƟons 

 3,576,174  8,547,413 

-Refer Note No-4(d) & 6
c) Interest Accrued and Due on Borrowings  1,685,328,838  1,668,154,835 
d) Unpaid Matured Debentures and 
Interest accrued thereon
Other Overdue Debenture -Refer Note 
No-4(a)

 1,011,630  1,011,630

Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund 
(Matured Debenture)

 15,206,388  15,208,397 

-Refer Note No-4(a)  
Interest Accrued and Due  59,20,399  22,138,417  5,920,399  22,140,426 
e)  Other Payables
Overdue PorƟon of Long Term Debt (Refer 
Note No-4(b) above)

 136,200,028  276,198,505 

Overdue Lease Finance Rent (Refer Note 
No-6)

 5,973,672  1,153,475 

Advance from Customers & Others  5,598,435  8,380,139 
Statutory LiabiliƟes  5,047,418  5,275,455 
Salary Wages & Bonus  25,232,565  23,650,527 
Others  12,673,216  190,725,334  5,176,041  319,834,142 

Total 2,053,040,063 2,025,409,651 

NOTE : 10 Short Term Provisions
PARTICULARS As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
     a) Provision for Employees Benefits
         Unpaid Gratuity  4,067,740  4,141,795 
         Leave Encashment  3,697,614  7,765,354  2,151,693  6,293,488 
Total  7,765,354  6,293,488
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NOTE : 12 Non-Current Investments
PARTICULARS As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
a) Investment Property      
b) Investments in Equity instruments
     Bodies Corporate:
     Quoted Fully Paid Up.
    i) Anil Special Steel Industries Ltd.  
       111,705 (Previous Year 101,550) Equity Shares of    
       Rs.10/-each. (Including 10,155 Equity Shares 
       received as Bonus during the year)

 2,652,450  2,652,450 

   ii) Sunil Synchem Ltd 
        Nil (Previous Year 371,580) Equity Shares of      
        Rs.10/-each.

–  2,195,700 

  iii) Pamwi Tissues Ltd 
        260,130 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  1,328,427  1,328,427 
  iv)  Sumangala Investment Co.Ltd
         4,200 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each  42,000  42,000 
                4,022,877  6,218,577 
      Un-Quoted Fully Paid Up.
      i) Shalimar Impex Ltd 
         1,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  10,000  10,000 
     ii) Satya Sons Services Ltd 
         2,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  20,000  20,000 
                30,000  30,000 

 4,052,877  6,248,577 
c)  Investments in Govt. or Trust SecuriƟes 
     7 Year NaƟonal Savings CerƟficate.  13,000  13,000  13,000  13,000 
     (Lodged with Govt. AuthoriƟes )

 4,065,877  6,261,577 
Less: Provision for diminuƟon in value of Investments  3,549,176  3,549,176 
Total  516,701  2,712,401 
Note : All the above investments are stated at cost. Provision 
for diminuƟon is made to recognize a decline, other than 
temporary, in the value of long term investments, script wise.
Aggregate value of Quoted Investments  4,022,877  6,218,577 
Market value of Quoted Investments  633,278  5,626,013 
Aggregate value of Un-Quoted Investments  43,000  43,000 
Aggregate Provision for diminuƟon in value of Investments  3,549,176  3,549,176 

NOTE : 13 Long Term Loans and Advances
 Unsecured, Considered Goods: As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
a) Capital Advances  8,655,142  3,293,053 
b)  Security Deposits  18,340,271  16,704,753 
c) Other Loans and Advances

Inter Corporate Deposits  40,617,747  40,617,747 
Taxes & DuƟes Paid Under Protest  6,391,053  5,991,053 
Advance Income Tax  2,024,784  1,871,103 
Advance against Salary & Wages  4,207,228  53,240,812  80,236,225  5,104,937  53,584,840  73,582,646 

Total  80,236,225  73,582,646 
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NOTE : 14 Other Non-Current Assets
As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
a) Others

 Unsecured, Considered Goods :
     Export EnƟtlement  11,118,251  11,118,251 
     Claim Receivable  20,947,473  4,586,918 
Total  32,065,724  15,705,169 

Note :  In respect of Claims Receivable for Rs. 2,697,618/- even though the amount is outstanding for a long period, no provision has been made as the 
same is considered good for recovery.

NOTE : 15 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, unless stated otherwise)

a)  Raw Materials  68,764,670  66,974,117 
b)  Work in Progress  137,488,016  127,653,659 
c)  Finished Goods  17,084,630  14,743,893 
d)  Stores & Spares  55,038,466  57,739,143 
e) Factory Scrap  199,791  70,344 

Total  278,575,573  267,181,156 

NOTE : 16 Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered Goods :
Outstanding for a period exceeding six month  36,544,327  34,931,940 
Other Debts  255,320,865  291,865,192  270,974,054  305,905,994 
Doubƞul : 
Outstanding for a period exceeding six month  762,157  304,359 
Less : Provision for doubƞul debts  762,157  –    304,359  –   
Total  291,865,192  305,905,994 

Note : Trade receivables include Rs.3,320,905/- (Previous year Rs.3,320,905/-) outstanding since a long period from related parƟes. However, no provision 
against the same has been considered necessary. Refer Note No. 33 relaƟng to related parƟes.     

NOTE : 17 Cash and Cash Equivalent
a) Balances with Banks

     In Current Account  11,428,493  8,234,004 
     Fixed Deposit  –    11,428,493  500,000  8,734,004 

b) Cash on hand  1,334,252  1,464,770 
c) Other Bank Balance

Deposits under lien with banks
Fixed Deposit (Lodged with Bank as Margin)  
i)   Maturity period more than 3 months but less than 12 months  4,607,900  607,900 
ii)  Maturity period more than 12 months  5,003,553  9,611,453  8,522,825  9,130,725 
Total  22,374,198  19,329,499
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As at March, 2014 As at March, 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 18 Short Term Loans and Advances
a) Loans and Advances to Related ParƟes :  15,921,677  15,921,677 

Unsecured, Considered Goods
b) Others :

Unsecured, Considered Goods 
Advance to Suppliers & Others  16,896,399  23,463,190 
CENVAT Receivable  7,579,715  8,367,010 

 Vat receivable  2,306,242   2,935,948 
TDS Receivable  104,215  77,239 
Prepaid Expenses  2,917,754  1,909,486 
Others  5,167,340  34,971,665  5,435,632  42,188,505 

Total  50,893,342  58,110,182 

Note : In view of the long outstanding posiƟon, no interest income has been accounted for since 2001-2002 in respect of the unsecured Loans and Advance 
to Related ParƟes, no provision has been made against the same.

NOTE : 19 Other Current Assets
 Interest Receivable  593,029  1,126,074 

Total  593,029  1,126,074 

2013-14 2012-13
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 20 Revenue from operaƟons
a) Sale of goods (Gross)

 Wire/Fabric for Pulp, Paper Board Industries  845,054,048 860594912
 Copper & Copper Alloy Wires Including Monel Wires  106,481,514 116697796
 Dandy Roll & Dandy Bracket  20,813,481  18,436,131 
 Others  9,624,233  981,973,276  10,085,011  1,005,813,850 

b) Other OperaƟng Income
 Export EnƟtlement  6,740,294  5,776,466 
 Scrap Sale*  1,942,494  8,682,788  3,603,561  9,380,027 
 Revenue from operaƟons (Gross)  990,656,064  1,015,193,877 
 Less : Excise duty and cess on sale of goods  84,359,565  90,214,478 
 Revenue from operaƟons (net)  906,296,499  924,979,399 
 * Net of Excise Duty. 

NOTE : 21 Other Income
a) Interest Income (Tax Deducted at Sources Rs.124,328 

Previous year Rs.128,161/-)
 1,268,015  1,770,730 

b)  Net Gain on Sale of Investment.  2,263,260 –
c)  Other Non-OperaƟng Income (Net) :

i)    Net gain on foreign currency transacƟons  9,044,619  6,195,221 
ii)   Unspent liabiliƟes/balances wriƩen back  3,022,991  3,678,196 
iii)  Miscellaneous Income  1,554,072  13,621,682  1,175,133  11,048,550 
Total  17,152,957  12,819,280 
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2013-14 2012-13
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 22 Cost of Materials Consumed
Raw Materials Consumed

Opening Stock  66,974,117  57,501,867 
Add: Purchase  327,081,095  394,055,212  297,843,406  355,345,273 

Less: Closing Stock  68,764,670  66,974,117 
Total  325,290,542  288,371,156 

NOTE : 23 Change in Inventories
Closing Stock :

Finished Goods  17,084,630  14,743,893 
Work in Progress :  137,488,016  127,653,659 
Stock in Trade  –    –   
Scrap  199,791  154,772,437  70,344  142,467,896 

 Less: Opening Stock : 
Finished Goods  14,743,893  9,080,716 
Work in Progress :  127,653,659  137,250,359 
Stock in Trade  –    –   
 Scrap  70,344  142,467,896  58,304  146,389,379 

Increase / ( Decrease ) in Stock  12,304,541  (3,921,483)

NOTE : 24 Employees Benefits Expense
Salaries and Wages   158,661,764  149,361,338 
ContribuƟon to Providend Fund and Other Fund  10,268,576  9,606,668 
Staff welfare Expense  13,967,121  14,383,439 
Total  182,897,460  173,351,445 

 Note: Salaries and Wages include Rs.365,685/- (Previous Year Rs.340,689/-) being expenses incurred on Research & Development.

NOTE : 25 Finance Cost
a)  Interest Expense  68,655,813  30,244,042 

Total  68,655,813  30,244,042 
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2013-14 2012-13
Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 26 Other Expenses
  Stores & Spare parts consumpƟon  63,891,850  51,700,659 
  Rent  4,300,880  4,160,212 
  Rates & Taxes  931,416  743,950 
  Insurance  4,281,074  3,808,431 
  Power & Fuel  33,680,280  34,235,769 
  Repairs & Maintenance  58,176,424  45,403,515 
  Travelling & Conveyance  34,497,713  31,549,371 
  Directors' Fees  472,500  546,000 
  Payments to Auditors  315,000  405,000 
  Brokerage & Commission  20,853,257  18,422,853 
  Legal and Professional Expenses  23,483,362  24,244,303 
  Freight & Forwarding  5,906,376  6,828,240 
  SeƩlement CompensaƟon to Customers  9,123,168  9,946,039 
  Loss on Sale of Tangible Assets  1,679,252  304,671 
  Debenture Trustee RemuneraƟon  292,600  467,600 
  Doubƞul Debt WriƩen Off  2,294,810 –
  Sundry Balances WriƩen Off  16,806  350,000 
  Provision for Doubƞul Debt  457,798 –
  Prior Period Expenses  3,663,671  1,860,336 
  Miscellaneous Expenses  46,628,168  42,484,907 

 314,946,405  277,461,856 

NOTE : 27 Income from ExcepƟonal Items
a) Forfeited amount of Deposit from a party  29,511,183  –   
b) Waiver of Electricity Duty  17,025,343  –   

 46,536,526  –   
Note :
a) The amount of deposit received from a party  for disposal of Company's land at Nasik has been forfeited, including interest thereon as per BIFR Order 

dated 12 February, 2014 for failure of the party to meet its obligaƟons, amounƟng to Rs.29,511,183/-. Out of above 50% of the amount has been 
appropriated towards repayment of loans/interest to lenders as per terms of the said Order of the BIFR.

b) In terms of the BIFR Order dated 10th June,2010 the Company is enƟtled for waiver of Electricity Duty under the provision of the West Bengal Electricity 
Duty Act, 1935 for a period of 5 years with effect from 1st April,2009. Accordingly claim has been iniƟated with the Directorate of Electricity Duty for 
Rs.17,025,343/- pertaining to the period from 1st April, 2009 to 31st March, 2014 on the basis of Eligibility CerƟficate dated 17th January, 2014 issued 
by the Industrial ReconstrucƟon Department, Government of West Bengal. The final Waiver CerƟficate from the Directorate of Electricity Duty, Govt. of 
West Bengal, is awaited pending verificaƟon of documents relaƟng to the amount of claim.
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2013-14 2012-13
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 28 Other Disclosures
ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and Commitments
(To the extent not provided for)

 i) ConƟngent LiabiliƟes
a)  Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt  9,008,000  9,008,000 
b)  Guarantees  7,692,844  7,705,344 
c)  Other money for which the company is conƟngently liable

 Sale Tax Demands  212,784,725  211,743,068 
Excise Demands  193,516,528  193,516,528 
Municipal Tax Demands  1,857,305  1,857,305 
Non fulfillment of Export ObligaƟon under DEEC Scheme  57,324,691  57,324,691 
Non fulfillment of Export ObligaƟon under ISIL Scheme  –    465,483,249  3,399,219  467,840,811 

Total  482,184,093 484,554,155
ii) Commitments   

a)  EsƟmated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital  
      Account and not provided for

 73,900,107  43,024,083 

b)  Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid  –    –   
c)  Other Commitments  –    –   
Total  73,900,107  43,024,083 

Note : 
1) The above conƟngent liability in respect of Sale Tax includes an amount of Rs.179166738/- ( Previous Year Rs.179166738/- ) being tax  demand by 

the Sale Tax AuthoriƟes on sale of syntheƟc fabric manufactured by the Company for the year 1993-94, 1995-96  to 2001-02, 2003-04 and 2004-05 
consequent upon the treatment of such fabric as a taxable item which the Company claims to be non-taxable. The Company's appeal in respect of 
the aforesaid demand is pending before various authoriƟes. In respect of demand for disputed Sales Tax in SyntheƟc of Rs.78061149 /- for the year 
1993-94,1995-96,1997-98,1999-2000 and 2003-04,orders in favour of the Company have been issued by W.B.Commercial Taxes Appellate and Revision 
Board and Sr.Joint Commissioner as well as Hon'ble High Court of Kolkata.  The Sales Tax department is yet to issue revised orders and has not yet  filed 
review peƟƟon before the Hon'ble Apex Court.

Proceeding have also been iniƟated by the Sales Tax authoriƟes to re-open assessment in respect of certain other years, though no demand has been 
raised by the Department in respect of above years. The company is contesƟng the same and has been legally advice that the above is not taxable.

As against above demands the Company has deposited Rs.3,012,293/- under protest.

2) The above ConƟngent LiabiliƟes for Excise Demands includes demands made by Central Excise AuthoriƟes from Ɵme to Ɵme on some alleged 
intermediate product (Grey Fabric) of SyntheƟc Wire Cloth for the financial years 1987-88 to 2010-11.The Company is contesƟng the same beforeCESTAT 
and Supreme Court simultaneously and has been legally advised that no duty is payable on the same intermediate product.
As against above demands the Company has deposited Rs.2,250,000/- under protest.

3) The Company has deposited Rs. 928,760/- under protest against the demands for Municipal Tax.
4) As against the demands for non-fulfillment of Export ObligaƟon under DEEC Scheme, Rs.11,118,251/- has been deposited under protest and disclosed 

under Export EnƟtlements as Other Non-Current Assets.
5) The ConƟngent LiabiliƟes represenƟng dues to various Government AuthoriƟes as stated in (c) above, have been arrived at aŌer considering the 

reliefs granted by BIFR vides its Order dated 10.06.2010.
6) A sum amounƟng to Rs.14,359,743/-has been paid as advance in respect of above contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not 

provided for. 
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2013-14 2012-13
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 29 AddiƟonal InformaƟon
1. a) DepreciaƟon and AmorƟzaƟon Expense

Tangible Assets  62,386,079  60,696,109 
Intangible Assets  4,443,724  4,443,724 

Total  66,829,803  65,139,833 
b ) Payments to Auditors

 Audit Fees  175,000  250,000 
TaxaƟon MaƩer  100,000  75,000 
 Company Law MaƩers  –    –   
Other Services  40,000  80,000 
Reimbursement Of Expenses  –    –   

Total  315,000  405,000 
c) Prior Period Items

ContribuƟon to Gratuity Fund 540,698  –   
Legal & Professional Fees  1,993,137 783,991
Claims SeƩled  –    –   
Vehicle Expenses  12,452 36,491
Car Hire Charges  162,544  –   
Membership Fees  162,638  –   
Rates & Taxes  466,992  –   
DEPB License  –    767,894 
Others  325,210  271,960 

Total  3,663,671  1,860,336 

2013-14 2012-13
Qty ( Kg ) Value Qty ( Kg ) Value

2. a) Raw Material ConsumpƟon 
i )   Copper & Copper Alloy Wire  150,066  66,280,678  175,417  72,328,381 
ii)   Trivera Wire      181,959  169,108,259  175,918  113,220,681 
iii)  Stainless Steel Wire  160,328  65,933,903  165,790  65,425,659 
iv)  Strips  8,244  5,276,874  9,632  5,598,197 
v)   Non-Ferrous  13,116  11,143,402  30,820  24,702,796 
vi)  Others  8,486  7,547,427  9,453  7,095,442 
Total  522,199  325,290,542  567,030  288,371,156 

3. Work In Progress 
 i) Wire  9,668,964  5,680,362 
 ii) Brass  6,095,066  5,512,030 
iii) Cloth  40,918,543  37,595,579 
iv) SyntheƟc cloth Sqm  76,339,065  73,450,351 
v) Dandy Bracket  2,095,296  2,088,943 
vi) Others  2,371,082  3,326,394 

Total  137,488,016  127,653,659 
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2013-14 2012-13
Qty ( Kg ) Value Qty ( Kg ) Value

4. a) The aggregate, if material, of any amounts set aside to provisions 
made for meeƟng specific liabiliƟes, containgencies or commitments.
LiabiliƟes  –    –   
ConƟngencies  350,000  350,000 
Commitments  –    –   
Total  350,000  350,000 

Note: The above conƟngencies Rs.350,000/- (Previous Year Rs.350000/-) is dependent upon Court decision / out of Court SeƩlement /disposal of appeals,etc.
5. a) Value of imports calculated on C.I.F basis by the company during the 

financial year in respect of - 
I.   Raw Materials  250,832,333  210,869,107 
II.  Components and Spare Parts  24,402,877  19,047,495 
III. Capital Goods  21,911,196  60,944,420 

b)  Expenditure in Foreign Currency during the financial year:
 I.   Travelling  5,946,529  4,226,798 
II.   Commission to Selling Agent  19,290,166  15,626,754 
III.  Others  –    –   

c) Total value of Imported and Indigenous materials consumed :
 I.  Raw Material
     Imported  271,439,978  214,585,842 
     Indigenous  53,850,564  73,785,315 
     Total  325,290,542  288,371,157 
II. Spare Parts and Components
    Imported  5,710,311  5,303,007 
    Indigenous  58,181,539  46,397,652 
    Total  63,891,850  51,700,659 

d)  Earnings in Foreign Exchange :
 I.    Export of Goods calculated on F.O.B. Basis  244,490,451  219,456,146 

30 Amounts due in respect of Trade Receivable, Loans & Advance given (Non Current and Current Assets) which are considered good and amounts due to 
parƟes (under Non Current LiabiliƟes and Trade Payable) are subject to confirmaƟon from the respecƟve parƟes.

31 Debenture RedempƟon Reserve has not been created in view of brought forward loss.

32 No provision for taxaƟon has been made in the accounts in view of carry forward loss. Also Minimum Alternate Tax ( MAT ) provision has not been made 
since this is not applicable, the Company being a Sick Industrial Company. 

33 Related Party Disclosures under AccounƟng Standared-18 :
 (a)  Key Management Personnel :   
  Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan   

 (b)  RelaƟves of Key Management Personnel :   
  Mr. Vedant Khaitan (Son of Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan)   

 (c)  Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relaƟves are able to exercise significant influence :   
 Sunil Healthcare Limited   

  Shalimar Industries Limited    
  Anil Special Steel Industries Ltd   
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 Details of transacƟons between the Company and related parƟes and the status of outstanding balances as on 31st March, 2014 :

TransacƟons with Related ParƟes

 Enterprises over which 
significant  Influence 

exists

 Key Management
 Personnel 

 RelaƟves to Key 
 Management 

Personnel
 Total 

 2013-14  2012-13  2013-14  2012-13  2013-14  2012-13  2013-14  2012-13 

RemuneraƟon :

Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan  –   –    3,708,875  3,664,538 –   –    3,708,875  3,664,538 

Salary & Other Perquisites

Mr. Vedant Khaitan  679,687  499,026  679,687  499,026 

Balance Outstanding : 

Inter Corporate Deposit receivable

Anil Special Steel Industries Ltd.* 15,589,477 15,589,477  –   –   –   –   15,589,477 15,589,477 

Shalimar Industries Limited  332,200  332,200  –   –   –   –    332,200  332,200 

Accounts Receivable :

Anil Special Steel Industries Ltd.*  2,875,454  2,875,454  –   –   –   –    2,875,454  2,875,454 

Shalimar Industries Limited  445,451  445,451  –   –   –   –    445,451  445,451 

Accounts Payables :

Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan  –    –    2,176,171  2,533,207  –    –    2,176,171  2,533,207 

Mr. Vedant Khaitan  –    –    –    –    59,580  59,580  59,580  59,580 

Shalimar Industries Limited  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   

Sunil Healthcare Limited  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   

 Note :    a)  An amount of ` Nil (Previous year - ` 1,67,017/-) has been wriƩen back during the year in respect of due to related parƟes. 
  b)  No amount has been wriƩen off during the year in respect of due from related parƟes.
  c) No provision for doubƞul debts in respect of dues from related  parƟes has been made.
  *  Ceased to be related party  w.e.f. 01.04.2012      
       

34 The Accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis as the accumulated losses of the Company exceeded its net worth and the 
Company was declared as Sick Industrial Company as per the Sick Industrial Companies ( Special Provision ) Act, 1985 by the Board of Industrial and 
Financial ReconstrucƟon ( BIFR ) vide its Order dated 30.01.2006. The said Board has accorded its approval as conveyed vide its Order dated 10.06.2010 
to the DraŌ RehabilitaƟon Scheme ( DRS ) submiƩed by the Company and which was received the Company on 24.06.2010. The effect of the above has 
been duly given in the financial statement.      

35 DisconƟnued OperaƟon :      

 a)  The Company has disconƟnued its Nasik Unit from 2nd July 2003 onwards.      
 The results of the disconƟnued business during the year where as under;

For the year ended 
31st Mach, 2014

For the year ended 
31st Mach, 2013

` ` ` `
Expenses :
Employees Benefits  1,470,642  1,376,263 
DepreciaƟon and AmorƟzaƟon  1,561,317  1,621,462 
Other Expenses  6,037,900  5,594,349 
Total Expenses  9,069,859  8,592,074 
Loss before tax from ordinary acƟviƟes  (9,069,859)  (8,592,074)
Add : Gain on disposal of assets / Excess provision of depreciaƟon of 
assets wriƩen back / SeƩlement of liabiliƟes aƩributable to DisconƟnuing  
operaƟon.

 181,469  13,695 

Profit / ( Loss ) from disconƟnuing operaƟons aŌer tax  (8,888,390)  (8,578,379)



51

SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

For the year ended 
31st Mach, 2014

For the year ended 
31st Mach, 2013

` ` ` `
Carrying amount of the total assets relaƟng to 
disconƟnuing operaƟons to be disposed off  49,710,874  51,090,754 
Carrying amount of the total liabiliƟes relaƟng to disconƟnuing operaƟons 
to be seƩled

 84,021,972  84,999,273 

Net cash flow aƩributable to the disconƟnued operaƟon
Cash inflows / (ouƞlow) from operaƟng acƟviƟes  6,732,866  93,117 
Cash inflows / (ouƞlow) from invesƟng acƟviƟes  –    –   
Cash inflows / (ouƞlow) from financing acƟviƟes  (6,732,835)  (92,990)

 b) As per the demerger order passed by the Hon'ble CalcuƩa High Court long back the Company is liable to pay stamp duty under Bombay Stamp 
Act, 1958 for registraƟon of its immovable properƟes located in Maharashtra and accordingly has made esƟmated provision of Rs,210.32 lakhs 
on account of stamp duty. Pursuant to  the said order, Rs.210.32 lakhs is receivable from Jhagadia Copper Ltd ( Formerly SWIL Ltd ) which will be 
accounted for as and when received. 

 c)  The above operaƟon has been disclosed under "Strip & Wires" business segment. 

 d)  The disconƟnuance is expected to be completed within 1 Year. 

36 Segment ReporƟng Disclosures under AccounƟng Standard-17 :

 Based on the guiding principles given in AccounƟng Standard 17 'Segment ReporƟng' ,the Company's primary business segments are (a) Paper Mill 
Product and (b) Strip & Wire.

 Segment wise Revenue, Results and Capital Employed for the year ended 31st March, 2014 :

2013-14 2012-13
A. Primary Segment Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
A.1. Segment Revenue (Gross Sales / Income from each segment)

(a) Paper Mill Products
i)  External Revenue  895,617,673  889,464,060 
ii) Inter segment Revenue  –    895,617,673  –    889,464,060 

(b) Strip & Wire
i)  External Revenue  109,729,353  116,349,791 
ii) Inter segment Revenue –    109,729,353  –    116,349,791 

(c) Others –    –   
 1,005,347,026  1,005,813,851 

A.2. Segment Results [(Profit / (Loss) before Tax and interest]
(a) Paper Mill Products  63,573,936  160,106,510 
(b) Strip & Wire  (26,672,539)  (37,259,863)
(c) Others  46,536,526  (208,787)

Total  83,437,923  122,637,860 
Less : Interest Cost  (68,655,813)  (31,907,375)
Add : ExcepƟonal Items : Write back (Net)on account of BIFR 
scheme

 –    –   

Total Profit / (Loss) before Tax  14,782,110  90,730,485 

As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2014
Assets LiabiliƟes Assets LiabiliƟes

A.3. Net Segment Assets
(Segment Assets less Segment LiabiliƟes)
(a) Paper Mill Products  1,068,307,452  160,677,482  1,058,599,330  285,295,870 
(b) Strip & Wire  117,539,437  94,713,448  129,510,479  105,057,307 
(c) Unallocable liabiliƟes less unallocable assets.  89,200,172  27,225,711  53,629,936  137,991,909 

 1,275,047,061  282,616,641  1,241,739,745  528,345,086 
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As at 31st March, 2014 As at 31st March, 2014
A.4. Capital expenditure including capital work-in-progress and 

depreciaƟon
Capital

Expenditure
DepreciaƟon Capital

Expenditure
DepreciaƟon

` ` ` `
(a) Paper Mill Products  96,822,903  63,736,035  134,983,552  56,681,780 
(b) Strip & Wire –    4,655,085  –    5,735,739 
(c) Others  –    –    –    –   

Total  96,822,903  68,391,120  134,983,552  62,417,519 

2013-2014 2012-2013
A.5 Significant non cash expenses other than DepreciaƟon (Rs.) (Rs.)

(a) Paper Mill Products  –    –   
(b) Strip & Wire  –      –   
(c) Others  –    –   

Total  –    –   

B. Secondary Segment Paper Mill 
Products

Strip & Wire Others Total
Geographical distribuƟon of segment revenues
1. India  686,107,430  74,749,145  –    760,856,575 

 (716,581,396)  (92,413,131)  –    (808,994,527)
2. European ConƟnent –    32,029,383  –    32,029,383 

 –    (24,000,444)  –    (24,000,444)
3. African ConƟnent  5,327,535  –    –    5,327,535 

 (5,475,525)  –    –    (5,475,525)
4. U.S.A.  275,580  –    –    275,580 

5. Other Asian Countries  203,907,128  2,950,825  –    206,857,953 
 (186,814,053)  (2,828,231)  –    (189,642,284)

Total  895,617,673  109,729,353  –    1,005,347,026 
 (908,870,974)  (119,241,806)  –    (1,028,112,780)

 Note :  a)  The Company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment.    

  b)  TransacƟons between segments are for materials which are transferred at cost.    

  c)  Segment revenue and expense include items directly aƩributable to the segment and common costs, apporƟoned on a reasonable basis. 
They do not include investment income, interest income from Inter-corporate deposits and loans given, dividend income and interest 
expense.  

  d)  All Segment assets and liabiliƟes are directly aƩributable to the segment. Segment assets include all operaƟng assets used by the segment 
and consists principally of net fixed assets, inventories, sundry debtors, loans and advances and operaƟng cash and bank balances. Segment 
liabiliƟes include all operaƟng liabiliƟes and consist principally of creditors and accrued liabiliƟes. Segment assets and liabiliƟes do not 
include investments, loans given, interest accrued and due/ but not due, share capital, reserves and surplus and loans.

  e)  Fixed Assets used in Company's business or liabiliƟes contracted have not been idenƟfied to any of the reportable geographical segments, 
as the fixed assets and services are used interchangeably between segments. Accordingly, no disclosure relaƟng to total segment assets and 
liabiliƟes are made. 
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37 Disclosure in terms of AccounƟng Stanadrd-29 

 (a) Movement for Provision for LiabiliƟes : 

Legal Cases
ParƟculars Rs.
Balance as at 1st April,2013 350,000 
Provided During the period  – 
Amount used during the period  – 
Reversed during the period  – 
Balance as at 31st March,2014. 350,000 
Timing of ouƞlow/uncertainƟes               Ouƞlow on 

seƩlement/ CrystallizaƟon

 (b) The ConƟngent LiabiliƟes & LiabiliƟes  are dependent upon Court decision / out of Court SeƩlement/ Disposal of appeals, etc.

 (c) No reimbursement is expected in the case of ConƟngent LiabiliƟes & LiabiliƟes. 

38 Employees Benefits under AccounƟng Standard-15 :    

 As per AccounƟng Standard - 15 " Employee Benefits" , the disclosure of Employee Benefits as defined in the AccounƟng Standard  are as follows:

 a)  Defined ContribuƟon Plan :   

  i)  Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund, SuperannuaƟon Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme and Labour Welfare Fund are 
considered as defined contribuƟon plan except that Provident Fund in respect of certain employees is contributed to a fund set up by  the 
Company which is treated as a Defined Benefit Plan since the Company has to meet the interest shorƞall. 

  ii)  The contribuƟons to the funds are made in accordance with the relevant statute and are recognized as an expense when employees have 
rendered service enƟtling them to the contribuƟons. The contribuƟon to Defined ContribuƟon Plan, recognized as expense for the year are 
as under :

Defined ContribuƟon Plan 2013-2014 2012-2013
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Employer's ContribuƟon to Provident Fund  10,268,576  9,606,668 
Employer's ContribuƟon to SuperannuaƟon Fund  –    –   
Employer's ContribuƟon to Employee State Insurance Scheme  2,824,265  3,296,861 
Employer's ContribuƟon to Labour Welfare Fund  9,070  10,164 

 b)  Defined Benefit Plan :   

  i)  Post employment and other long-term employee benefits in the form of gratuity and leave encashment are considered as Defined Benefit 
ObligaƟon. The present value of obligaƟon is determined based on actuarial valuaƟon using projected unit credit method as at the Balance 
Sheet date. The amount of defined benefits recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the obligaƟon as adjusted for 
unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

  ii) Provident Fund in respect of certain employees is contributed to a fund set up by the Company which is treated as a Defined Benefit Plan 
since the Company has to meet the interest shorƞall. There is no interest shorƞall as at the year end. As advised by an independent actuary, 
it is not pracƟcal or feasible to actuarially value the liability considering that the rate of interest is noƟfied by the Government. Accordingly 
other related disclosures in respect of Provident Fund have not been made.

  iii)  Any asset resulƟng from this calculaƟon is limited to the discounted value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from 
the plan or reducƟons in future contribuƟons to the plan. The amount recognized in the Profit and Loss Account for the year in respect of 
Employees Benefit Schemes based on actuarial reports is as follows :
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Gratuity Leave Encashment
Funded Unfunded Funded

Components of Employer Expense : 13-14 12-13 13-14 12-13 13-14 12-13
Current Service Cost  2.51  6.72  23.28  21.71  21.51  2.42 
Past Service Cost  –    –    –    –    –   
Interest Cost  6.18  4.43  31.17  28.19  12.36  9.98 
Expected Return on Plan Asset  (3.15)  –    (5.94)  (5.67)  –    –   
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year  5.27  2.32  (4.44)  15.79  26.86  2.90 
Expense recognized in statement of Profit & Loss Account  10.81  13.47  44.07  60.02  60.73  15.30 

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Funded Unfunded Funded

Change in Present Value of Defined Benefit ObligaƟon : 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13
Present Value of Defined Benefit ObligaƟon at the beginning of the year  77.20  79.24  326.20  300.21  122.43  128.11 
Interest Cost  6.18  4.43  31.17  21.71  12.36  9.98 
Past Service Cost  –    –    –    –    –    –   
Current Service Cost  2.51  6.72  23.28  28.19  21.51  2.42 
Benefits paid  (18.47)  (15.51)  (9.52)  (39.82)  (24.93)  (20.98)
Actuarial (gain)/loss  5.27  2.32  (4.57)  15.91  26.86  2.90 
Present Value of ObligaƟon at the end of the year  72.69  77.20  366.56  326.20  158.23  122.43 

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Funded Unfunded Funded

Change in fair value of Plan Assets during the year ended 31st March, 
2014 :

13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13

Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  48.25  48.22  56.95  69.12  –    –   
Expected Return on Plan Assets  3.15  –    5.94  5.67  –    –   
Actual Company ContribuƟon  3.00  0.03  21.77  21.85  22.63  20.98 
Benefits Paid  (18.47)  –    (9.52)  (39.82)  (22.63)  (20.98)
Actuarial (gain)/loss  –    –    (0.13)  0.13  –    –   
Plan Assets at the end of the year  35.93  48.25  75.01  56.95  –    –   

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Funded Unfunded Funded

Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2014 :

13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13

Present value of Defined Benefit ObligaƟon  72.69  77.20  366.56  326.20  158.23  122.43 
Fair Value on Plan Assets  (35.92)  (28.95)  75.01  56.95  –    –   
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)]  –    (291.55)  (269.25)  (158.23)  (122.43)
Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet  36.77  48.25  (291.55)  (269.25)  (158.23)  (122.43)

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Funded Unfunded Funded

Actuarial AssumpƟons: 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13
Discount Rate(per annum)  –    –    8.25  8.25  8.25/9.25  8.25/8.25 
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets(per annum)  –    –    N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A. 
Salary increases  –    –    5  5  5/7  5/7 
ReƟrement / SuperannuaƟon age  –    –   58 years 58 years 58 years 58 years
Mortality  –    –   LIC

(1994–96) 
ulƟmate 

Mortality
Rates

 LIC
(1994–96)  

ulƟmate 
Mortality

Rates

LIC
(1994–96) 

ulƟmate 
Mortality

Rates

 LIC
(1994–96) 

ulƟmate 
Mortality

Rates 
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Gratuity Leave Encashment
Funded Unfunded Funded

Major Category of Plan Assets as a % of the Total Plan Assets as at year 
end:

13-14 12-13 13-14 12-13 13-14 12-13

 –    –   N.A. N.A.  –    –   

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Funded Unfunded Funded

Experience Adjustments: 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13
Defined Benefit ObligaƟon  –    –    366.56  326.20  158.23  122.43 
Plan Assets  –    –    75.01  56.95  –    –   
Funded Status  –    –    (291.55)  (269.25)  (158.23)  (122.43)
Experience Gain/(Loss) adjustments on Plan LiabiliƟes  –    –    (4.57)  15.91  26.86  2.90 
Experience Gain/(Loss) adjustments on Plan Assets  –    –    (0.13)  0.13  –    –   

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Funded Unfunded Funded

Expected Employer's ContribuƟon for the next year : 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13
Expected Employer's ContribuƟon for the next year  –    –    91.92  88.14  68.02  31.29 

 c)  Basis used to determine the expected Rate of return on Plan Assets :  
  The basis used to determine the expected rate of return on Plan Assets is Deep Discount Interest rate of R.B.I. or average interest rate of R.B.I. 

Long Term Instrument.  
 d)  Other disclosures :   
  i)  The esƟmates of rate of escalaƟon in salary considered in actuarial valuaƟon, take into account inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon and other 

relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above informaƟon is cerƟfied by the actuary.
  ii)  The Gratuity expenses have been recognized in " ContribuƟon To Provident & Other Funds" and Leave Encashment  in "Salaries/Wages and 

Bonus" under Note No -24   
  iii) The amount of the present value of obligaƟons, fair value of Plan Assets, surplus/deficit in the plan and experience adjustment arising on 

plan liabiliƟes and plan assets for the previous three annual periods are not available and therefore, not disclosed.

 Note : Above informaƟon have been compiled on the basis of CerƟficates issued by the Actuaries. 

39 Earning Per Shares :

2013-2014 2012-2013
(Rs.) (Rs.)

a)  Net Profit/(Loss) aŌer tax available for equity shareholders  14,782,110  90,730,485 
b) Weighted average number of Basic Equity Shares of ` 2/-  each outstanding during the year. 

(No. of shares)
 37,605,123  31,655,123 

c) Weighted average number of Diluted Equity Shares of ` 2/- each outstanding during the year. 
(No. of shares)

 37,605,123  31,655,123 

d) Basic Earning Per Shares (Rs) a/b 0.39 2.87
e) Diluted Earning Per Shares (Rs) a/c 0.39 2.87

40 The previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary and pracƟcable. Amounts and other 
disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relaƟon to the amounts 
and other disclosures relaƟng to the current year.

As per our report of even date.    
For S. S. KOTHARI & CO. Sunil  Khaitan   Dipak Dasgupta
Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director
FR NO. 302034E    
CA P. K. BhaƩacharya    
Partner    
Membership No.015899 S. J. Sengupta  S. K. Kejriwal
Kolkata 19th May, 2014 Sr V.P.& CFO  Company Secretary
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SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Regd. Office: 25 Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Kolkata – 700012, West Bengal, India, CIN: L74140WB1996PLC081521 

Phone: (033) 2234 9308/09/10, Fax: (033) 2211 6880, E-mail: secretarial@shalimarwires.com, Website: www.shalimarwires.com    

 

 ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 
 

EVSN (E-voting Sequence Number) USER ID PASSWORD 

   
 

Please read instructions given at Note No. 13 of the Notice of the 18th Annual General Meeting carefully before voting electronically. 

------- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 

 ATTENDANCE SLIP 

I /We hereby record my/our presence at the 
18th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company at Science City, Mini 
Auditorium,   J.B.S Haldane Avenue, 
Kolkata – 700046, on 29th September, 
2014 at 10.00 a.m. 

Folio/DP ID & Client ID No.:  
Shares:  
Serial No.:  
Name:  
Name(s) of joint Holder(s), if any:  
                                                          

Address:  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

………………………………………………………………                      …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Name of Proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS)               Signature of Shareholder/Proxy Present 
Notes: 
1. Members/Proxyholders who wish to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) must bring their Admission Slips to the AGM and hand over the same 

duly signed at the entrance. Duplicate Admission Slips will not be issued at the venue. 
2. Members/Proxyholders desiring to attend the meeting are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report for reference at the Meeting.  

------- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------     
 

PROXY FORM-MGT.11                                 SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Regd. Office: 25 Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Kolkata – 700013, West Bengal, India, CIN: L74140WB1996PLC081521 

Phone: (033) 2234 9308/09/10, Fax: (033) 2211 6880, E-mail: secretarial@shalimarwires.com, Website: www.shalimarwires.com 
 

Folio/DP ID & Client ID No.:   E-mail ID : 

Name of the member (s):  
 

Address:  
 
 
 

 

I/We, being the member(s), holding………………………….shares of the above named company hereby appoint : 
 

(1) Name ………………………………………………………………………………Address………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
E-mail Id…………………………………………………………………………Signature………………………………………………………………………………or failing him/her 

(2) Name ………………………………………………………………………………Address………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
E-mail Id…………………………………………………………………………Signature………………………………………………………………………………or failing him/her 

(3) Name ………………………………………………………………………………Address………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
E-mail Id…………………………………………………………………………Signature………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 18th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on 
Monday, September 29, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. at Science City, Mini Auditorium, J.B.S. Haldane Avenue, Kolkata-700046 and at any adjournment thereof in 
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:  

Resolution 
No. 

Resolutions Optional * 
For Against 

Ordinary Business 
1. Consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2014 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 
  

2. Appointment of Mr. Sunil Khaitan, who retires by rotation.   
3. Appointment of M/s.S.S. Kothari & Company, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the 

Company and authorise Board of Directors to fix their remuneration. 
  

Special Business 
       4. Amendment of existing Articles 127 and 160(d) of the Articles of Association   

5. Re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Khaitan as Managing Director   
6. Appointment of Mr. Dipak Rudra  as an Independent Director of the Company.   
7. Appointment of Mr. Probir Roy as an Independent Director of the Company.   
8. Appointment of Mr. Dipak Dasgupta as an Independent Director of the Company.   
9. Approval of  the Remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2015.   
10. Borrowing limit u/s. 180(1)(c)   

 
 

Signed this …………………………………………….day of …………………………………….2014 
Member’s Folio /DP ID & Client ID No……………………………………………………..Signature of Shareholder(s)……………………………….…………………… 
Signature of Proxy holder(s)………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Note : 1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not 

 less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
           2.  For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 18th Annual General Meeting. 
         *3.  It is optional to put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated to the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column  
     blank against any or all ‘Resolution’ your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting of the members of Shalimar Wires Industries Limited will be held at Science City 
Mini Auditorium, J.B.S. Haldane Avenue, Kolkata - 700 046, on Monday, the 29th  September, 2014 at 10.00 A.M. to transact the following 
business :

Ordinary Business :

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Statement of Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2014 and 
the Balance Sheet as at that date together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sunil Khaitan (DIN 00385961) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

3. To appoint Auditor and to fix their remuneration and in this connection to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution which 
will be proposed as an Ordinary Resolution : 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139,142 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made there under, M/s. S. 
S.Kothari & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata, (Registration No.302034E) the retiring Auditor, be and are hereby re-appointed as 
Auditor of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the twenty first Annual 
General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of Directors   of the Company.” 

Special Business :

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), as 
may be amended from time to time, the consent of members be and is hereby accorded to substitute the existing Articles 127 and 160(d) 
of the Articles of Association of the Company, as under :

 Article 127 : ‘The Managing Director of the company during his tenure of appointment shall hold the office of Chairman. The Chairman 
and Managing Director shall preside over every meeting attended by him. If at any meeting of the Board, the Chairman and Managing 
Director is not present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the directors present shall choose one of them 
to be the Chairman of such meeting.’

 Article 160 (d) : ‘Subject to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Managing Director shall be liable to determination 
by retirement of Directors by rotation.’

5.  To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196,197,203 and other applicable provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the Act) read with Schedule V thereto and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and 
subject to such other approval, if any, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Khaitan 
(DIN00385961) as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 (three) years with effect from 1st April, 2014 on the terms and 
conditions including remuneration set out in the Statement u/s 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board be and is hereby authorized 
to enter into a formal agreement for this purpose.”

 “FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to alter/ vary terms and conditions and/
or remuneration, not exceeding the limit as specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, and to take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read 
with Schedule IV to the Act, Mr. Dipak Rudra (DIN 00240145), Director of the Company whose period of office is liable to determination 
by retirement of directors by rotation and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing 
his candidature for the office of director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for five 
consecutive years for a term up to conclusion of Annual General Meeting held in the year 2019 and whose office shall not, henceforth, be 
liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.”

Shalimar Wires Industries Limited
CIN : L74140WB1996PLC081521

Registered Office : 25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Kolkata - 700 013
Tel : 91-33-22349308/09/10, Fax : 91-33-2211 6880, Website : www.shalimarwires.com
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 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 197 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) 
and the other applicable provisions of Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange(s), Mr. Dipak Rudra (DIN 00240145), be paid such 
sitting fees as the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) may approve from time to time and subject to 
such limits, prescribed or as may be prescribed from time to time.” 

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read 
with Schedule IV to the Act, Mr. Probir Roy (DIN 00033045), Director of the Company whose period of office is liable to determination 
by retirement of directors by rotation and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing 
his candidature for the office of director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for five 
consecutive years for a term up to conclusion of Annual General Meeting held in the year 2019 and whose office shall not, henceforth, be 
liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 197 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) 
and the other applicable provisions of Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange(s), Mr. Probir Roy (DIN 00033045), be paid such sitting 
fees as the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) may approve from time to time and subject to such 
limits, prescribed or as may be prescribed from time to time.” 

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with 
Schedule IV to the Act, Mr. Dipak Dasgupta (DIN 01099414), Director of the Company whose period of office is liable to determination 
by retirement of directors by rotation and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing 
his candidature for the office of director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for five 
consecutive years for a term up to conclusion of Annual General Meeting held in the year 2019  and whose office shall not, henceforth, 
be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 197 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) 
and the other applicable provisions of Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange(s), Mr. Dipak Dasgupta (DIN 01099414),be paid such 
sitting fees as the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) may approve from time to time and subject to 
such limits, prescribed or as may be prescribed from time to time.”

9. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), 
M/s. Mitra Bose & Associates, Cost Accountants (Registration No. 000037), the Cost Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2015 be paid remuneration 
of Rs. 30,000/- as stated in the Statement annexed to the notice convening to this meeting.”

10. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution :

 “RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the Ordinary Resolution passed at the 8th Annual General Meeting held on 30th December, 2004 
and pursuant to Section 180(1) (c) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment 
thereto or re-enactment thereof), the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof) for borrowing from time to time any sum or sums of 
monies which, together with the moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from 
the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed the aggregate of the paid up capital of the and its free reserves, 
provided that the total amount so borrowed by the Board shall not exceed the limit of Rupees three hundred crores.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds and things, to 
execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required in its absolute discretion to give effect to this resolution.”

Registered Office : By Order of the Board
25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue
Kolkata - 700 013 
The 5th August, 2014 S. K. Kejriwal
CIN : L74140WB1996PLC081521 Company Secretary
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NOTES

1. A Member is entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and a 
proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of 
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding of the Meeting. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is 
proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights, 
then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other member.

2. The relative Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of special business under items No. 4 to 10 are 
annexed hereto.

3. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 22.09.2014 to 29.09.2014 (both days 
inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

4. Members/proxy holders are requested to bring the attendance slip duly  filled in for attending the meeting. For shares held in dematerialised 
form, the DP ID and Client ID numbers should be indicated in the attendance slip.

5. Members are requested to notify any change in their address to the Company or its share transfer agent M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics 
Pvt. Ltd., 6 Mangoe Lane, Kolkata - 700 001 and in case shares are held in dematerialised form, this information should be passed on to 
their respective Depository participants without any delay.

6. Members who are holding 14% Partly Convertible Debentures of Rs.30/- each and have not yet surrendered their debentures certificate 
(s) are requested to surrender the same to the company at its Registered Office at 25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Kolkata- 700 013.

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 
Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN to the Company/RTA.

8. In all correspondences with the Company, members are requested to quote their Account/Folio numbers and in case their shares are held 
in dematerialised form, they must quote their client ID number and their DP ID number. 

9. To comply with the provision of Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules 2014, the Company shall be required to update its database by incorporating members’ designated e-mail ID in its records.

10. Members having any question on financial statements or any agenda items proposed this notice are requested to send their queries at 
least 10 days prior to the Annual General Meeting of the Company at its Registered Office address to enable the Company to collect the 
relevant information.

11. The Notice of 18th AGM and instructions for e-voting, along with the Attendance Slip and Proxy Form, is being sent to all members 
registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s).

12. Members may also note that the Notice of the 18th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2014 will also be available on the 
Company’s website www.shalimarwires.com The Notice of AGM shall also be available on the website of CDSL viz. www.evotingindia.
com.

13. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form 
facility to exercise their right to vote at the 18th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted 
through e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

 The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under :

 A. In case of members receiving e-mail:

  i) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting period.

  ii) Click on “Shareholder” tab.

  iii) Now, select “SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED” from the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”

  iv) Put user ID and password.

   a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID

   b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 digit client ID

   c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company

  v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

  vi) If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any 
Company, then your existing password is to be used.
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  vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below :

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (applicable for both demat 

and physical shareholders)
• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested 

to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.
• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the 

number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters eg. If your name is Ramesh 
Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. Sequence number is 
communicated in the Attendance Slip/ Covering letter.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the Company records for the said 
demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format

  viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

  ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection screen. However, members holding 
shares in demat form will now reach ‘password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to madatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Please note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential.

  x) For members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this 
Notice.

  xi) Click on the EVSN against the Company’s name for which you choose to vote i.e. SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED.

  xii) On the voting page, you will see RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION and against the same the option YES or NO for voting. Select the 
option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent 
to the Resolution.

  xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTION FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire resolution details.

  xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish 
to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

  xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

  xvi) You can also take print out of the voting done by you by clicking on “click here to print” option on the Voting page.

  xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click 
on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

   • Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to https://www.evotingindia.
co.in and register themselves as Corporates. 

   • They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com. 

   • After receiving the login details they have to create a user who would be able to link the account(s) which they wish to vote 
on. 

   • The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be 
able to cast their vote. 

   • They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

 B. In case a member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM (for members whose e-mail Ids are not registered with the Company/
Depository Participant(s) or requesting physical copy) :

  (i)  Please follow all steps from sl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xvii) above to cast vote.

  (ii) The voting period begins on 22nd September, 2014 ((9.00 am) and ends on 24th September, 2014 (6.00 pm), both days inclusive. 
During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the 
cut-off date of 22nd August, 2014, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter.
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14. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual 
available at www.evotingindia.co.in under help section or write an e-mail to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

15. The e-voting period commences on 22nd September, 2014 (9.00 am) and ends on 24th September, 2014 (6.00 pm), both days inclusive. 
During the period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 
22nd August, 2014, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote 
on a resolution is cast by the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast his vote by any other means.

16. The voting rights of shareholder shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 
date of 22nd August, 2014.

17. Mr. Mohan Ram Goenka, Practising Company Secretary, (Membership No. F 4515) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize 
the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

18. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days form the conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes 
in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

19. The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed 
on the Company’s website www.shalimarwires.com and on the website of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the 
AGM of the Company and communicated to BSE and CSE.

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Item No. 4

Article 127 of the Articles of Association of the Company empowers the Board to appoint a Chairman of its meeting and determine the period 
for which he is to hold office. As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) an individual cannot hold the post of Chairperson of 
the Company as well as Managing Director of the Company at the same time unless the articles of such a Company provide otherwise or the 
Company does not carry multiple businesses.

Mr. Sunil Khaitan is presently holding the position of Chairman as well as Managing Director. The Board recommends to make necessary 
amendment in Article 127 so that an individual can hold the post of Chairman as well as Managing Director of the Company at the same time.

As per Section 152(6) of the Act, at least two-third of directors of a Company (other than independent directors) will have to be directors whose 
office shall be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation. In view of the said provision, the alteration in Article 160(d) of the 
Articles of Association has been proposed to make the office of Wholetime Director liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

The resolution in item no.4 of the Notice is set out as a special resolution for approval of the members.

Save and except Mr. Sunil Khaitan, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, financially or otherwise 
concerned or interested in the resolution no. 4.

Item No. 5

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 5th August, 2014 have, 
subject to the approval of the members, appointed Mr. Sunil Khaitan (holding DIN 00385961) as Managing Director of the Company for a period 
of 3 (three) years effective from 1st April, 2014. on the terms and conditions, which are as under :

1. Salary at the rate of Rs. 1,85,000/- (Rupees One Lac eighty five thousand) per month. i.e. Rs. 22,20,000 (Rupees Twenty Two lacs Twenty 
thousand) per annum. In addition to the Salary, Mr. Khaitan shall also be entitled to get the following benefit:-

 (a) To the perquisites/benefits like furnished accommodation/house rent allowances, gas, electricity, water and furnishings, medical 
reimbursement and leave travel concession for self and family, club fees, personal accident insurance etc. as per rules of the 
company. Perquisites/benefits will be evaluated at actual cost, and will not exceed Rs. 1,65,000/- p.m. i.e. Rs. 19,80,000/- per 
annum. Total remuneration shall not exceed Rs.3,50,000/- p.m. or Rs.42,00,000/- per annum. The remuneration may be revised 
from time to time by the Board of Directors of the Company subject to the overall limit as specified under Part II of Section II A of 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

  However, in computation of the aforesaid remuneration, the following perquisites shall not be included:

  i) contribution to provident fund or superannuation fund to the extent these are either singly or put together not taxable under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961;

  ii) gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half month’s salary for each completed year of services; and

  iii) encashment of leave at the end of the tenure.
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 (b) Mr. Khaitan shall also be entitled to earned/privilege leave on full pay and allowances as per rules of the Company but not exceeding 
one month’s leave for every eleven months service under the Company provided that leave accumulated but not availed of will be 
allowed to be en cashed in accordance with the rules of the Company.

2. Mr. Sunil Khaitan shall not so long as he functions as the Managing Director of the Company be entitled to receive any fee for attending 
any of the Board or a Committee thereof.

3. The appointment of Managing Director may be terminated by either party to the Agreement by giving to the other three months notice in 
writing in which event Mr. Sunil Khaitan shall be entitled to receive his remuneration hereunder up to the expiration of such notice.

 Mr. Sunil Khaitan may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution to the extent of the remuneration payable to him. No 
other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, financially or otherwise, are concerned or interested in 
the proposed resolution.

 The Board recommends the adoption of the resolution.

Item Nos. 6 to 8

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 5th August, 2014 appointed Mr.Dipak Rudra, Mr. Probir Roy and Mr. Dipak Dasgupta as 
Additional Directors of the Company under independent category.

In terms of section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Mr. Rudra,  Mr. Roy and Mr. Dasgupta being 
eligible and offering themselves for appointment, are proposed to be appointed as Independent Directors for a term up to conclusion of Annual 
General Meeting held in the year 2019 and their office shall not, henceforth, be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation. 
Notices under Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013 along with the deposit of requisite amount as required under the aforesaid Section has 
been received from members proposing Mr. Dipak Rudra, Mr. Probir Roy and Mr. Dipak Dasgupta as candidates for the office of Independent 
Directors of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Dipak Rudra, Mr. Probir Roy and Mr. Dipak Dasgupta fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made there under for thier appointment as Independent Directors of the Company and they are independent of the management. 
Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Mr. Rudra, Mr. Roy and Mr. Dasgupta as an Independent Directors would be available for inspection 
without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board considers that their continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail 
services of Mr. Dipak Rudra, Mr. Probir Roy and Mr. Dipak Dasgupta as  Independent Directors. Accordingly the Board recommends the 
resolution in relation to appointment of Mr. Dipak Rudra, Mr. Probir Roy and Mr. Dipak Dasgupta as Independent Directors, for approval by the 
members of the Company.

Except Mr. Dipak Rudra, Mr. Probir Roy and Mr. Dipak Dasgupta, being appointees, none of the other Directors and the Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 6 to 8.

Item No. 9

The Board of Directors had approved appointment of M/s. Mitra Bose & Associates, Cost Accountants (Registration No.000037) as cost auditor 
of the Company, for a remuneration of Rs.30,000/- to conduct an audit of the cost accounting records maintained by the Company for the 
current financial year ending on 31st March, 2015. 

In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Act read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the remuneration payable 
to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary 
Resolution as set out at item no. 9 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 
March 31, 2015.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 9 of the Notice.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 9 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 10

The members had at the 8th Annual General Meeting held on 30th December, 2004 passed Ordinary Resolution and accorded their consent 
to the Board of Directors borrowing up to Rs.300 crores for the purpose of meeting the working capital requirements and any other corporate 
purpose, as required under Section 293 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956. On implementation of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), Section 
180(1) (c) of the Act which provide for approval by the Shareholders by way of Special Resolution as against Ordinary Resolutions under 
Companies Act, 1956. As such it is necessary to obtain fresh approval of the Members by means of Special Resolution, to enable the Board 
of Directors of the Company to borrow moneys, apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of 
business, in excess of the aggregate of paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company.

Your Directors recommends the resolution for approval of the members.

None of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, 
in the resolution set out at Item No. 10 except to the extent that it is proposed to authorize them to borrow money as stated in the Resolution.
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